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Date: Wednesday 28th June 2017 at 15.00pm 
 

Venue: Cavendish House, Teesdale Business Park, Stockton-On-Tees, TS17 
6QY 

 
Membership: 
Councillor Barry Woodhouse (Stockton-On-Tees Borough Council) 
Councillor Charles Johnson (Darlington Borough Council) 
Councillor Nicola Walker (Middlesbrough Borough Council) 
Councillor Michael Dick (Redcar & Cleveland Borough Council) 
Councillor Sandra Belcher (Hartlepool Borough Council) 
Colin Fyfe (Independent member) 
Paul Bury (Independent member) 
 

 

AGENDA 
 
1. Introductions 

 
2. Apologies for absence 
 
3. Declarations of interest 
 
4. 
 
 
 
5. 
 
6. 

Minutes  
The minutes of the meeting held on 29th March 2017 for confirmation and 
signature 
 
Nominations for Chair & Vice Chair 
 
Terms of Reference 
Report 
 

7. Internal Audit Annual Report   
Report 
 

8. 
 
 
9. 

External Audit Progress Report 
Report 
 
Annual Governance Statement 
Report 
 

10. 
 

Statement of Accounts 
Report 
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11. 
 
 
12. 
 
 
13. 
 
 
14. 
 
 
   

 
Risk Management Strategy and Corporate Risk Register 
Report 
 
2016/17 Audit Strategy Memorandum 
Report 
 
Forward Plan 
Attached 
 
Date of the next meeting 
 
26th September 2017 at 10.00am – Cavendish House, Stockton-On-Tees 
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Members of the Public - Rights to Attend Meeting 
  
With the exception of any item identified above as containing exempt or confidential information under the 
Local Government Act 1972 Section 100A(4), members of the public are entitled to attend this meeting and/or 
have access to the agenda papers. 
Persons wishing to obtain any further information on this meeting or for details of access to the meeting for 
disabled people please contact: Sharon Jones – 01642 524580 – sharon.jones@teesvalley-ca.gov.uk 

   

Members’ Interests 
 
 Members (including co-opted Members) should consider whether they have a personal interest in any item, 
as defined in paragraphs 9 and 11 of the Tees Valley Combined Authority’s (TVCA) code of conduct and, if 
so, declare the existence and nature of that interest in accordance with and/or taking account of paragraphs 
12 - 17 of the code. 
 
 Where a Member regards him/herself as having a personal interest, as described in paragraph 16 of the 
code, in any business of the TVCA he/she must then, in accordance with paragraph 18 of the code, 
consider whether that interest is one which a member of the public, with knowledge of the relevant facts, 
would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the Member’s judgement of the public 
interest and the business:-  
 
    a ffe cts  the  Me mbe r’s  fina ncia l pos ition or the  fina ncia l pos ition of a  pe rs on or body de s cribe d in  
     paragraph 17 of the code, or  
 
    re la te s  to the  de te rm ining of a ny a pprova l, cons e nt, lice nce , pe rm is s ion or re gis tra tion in re la tion  
     to the Member or any person described in paragraph 17 of the code.  
 
 A Member with a personal interest, as described in paragraph 18 of the code, may attend the meeting but 
must not take part in the consideration and voting upon the relevant item of business. However, a Member 
with such an interest may make representations, answer questions or give evidence relating to that business 
before the business is considered or voted on, provided the public are also allowed to attend the meeting for 
the same purpose whether under a statutory right or otherwise (paragraph 19 of the code). 
 
 Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
 
 It is a criminal offence for a Member to participate in any discussion or vote on a matter in which he/she has a 
disclosable pecuniary interest (and where an appropriate dispensation has not been granted)(paragraph 20 
of the code). 
 
 Members are required to comply with any procedural rule adopted by the TVCA which requires a Member to 
leave the meeting room whilst the meeting is discussing a matter in which that Member has a disclosable 
pecuniary interest (paragraph 21 of the code). 
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Minutes 

 

TEES VALLEY COMBINED AUTHORITY  
AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

Cavendish House, Teesdale Business Park, Stockton-On-Tees  TS17 6QY 
Wednesday 29th March 2017 at 15.30pm 

MEETING 

ATTENDEES   

Members   
Cllr Barry Woodhouse (Chair) Stockton on Tees Borough Council SBC 
Cllr Nicola Walker Middlesbrough Borough Council MBC 
Cllr Christopher Massey Redcar & Cleveland Borough Council R&CBC 
   
Apologies for absence   
Cllr Stephen Akers-Belcher Hartlepool Borough Council HBC 
Cllr Stephen Harker Darlington Borough Council DBC 
   
Officers   
Andrew Lewis  
Garry Cummings 
David New 
Andrew Barber 
Andy Bryson 
Sharon Jones 
 

Also in Attendance           
Mark Kirkham                        
Gareth Roberts 

 

Managing Director TVCA 
Chief Finance Officer 
Senior Finance manager 
Senior Audit Team Manager 
Finance Manager 
Scrutiny Officer 
 
 
 
Partner 
Senior Manager 
 

TVCA 
TVCA 
TVCA 
SBC 
SBC 
TVCA 
 
 
Mazars 
LLP 
Mazars 
LLP 

   
 
AGC 
01/17 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no interests declared. 
 

 

AGC 
02/17 

APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR 
 
Councillor Barry Woodhouse was appointed as Chair for this meeting 
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AGC 
03/17 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGC  
04/17 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
The Managing director explained that the Combined Authority Audit & 
Governance Committee has been established to look at both Audit and 
standards issues.  
 
It was explained that following the Mayoral election in May the 
Committee will be reappointed in line with the new Constitution and 
Legislation, and that there will be a requirement for the Committee to 
be politically balanced.  Based on the current political balance across 
the Tees Valley, the Committee will require four Labour members and 
one Conservative member. There will also be two independent 
members appointed, one to provide advice in relation to standards 
matters and one to assist the Committee in the discharge of its financial 
functions 
 
Discussion took place on the following topics: 

• Whether executive members can serve on the Committee under 
the new Constitution – the Constitution does not state that the 
Committee should be non-executive members only. The 
legislation for the committee will need to be checked for clarity.  

• “powers available to the Committee” – these are mentioned in 
paragraph 8 of the terms of reference and need to be clarified 
further 

• Complaints – it was explained that the complaints procedure is 
documented on the Combined Authority website for anyone 
who may wish to use this. There is a set procedure in place and 
the monitoring officer would determine if the Audit and 
Governance Committee would need to meet to discuss a 
complaint received by the Combined Authority 
 

Resolved that: 
1. The terms of reference are noted by the Committee  
2. There is nothing written in the Constitution or Legislation to 

state that executive members of constituent authorities cannot 
serve on the Audit and Governance Committee 

3. Clarification will be provided regarding the “powers” of the 
Committee and what options lie within these powers 

 
 EXTERNAL AUDIT ROLE 
 
The role of the external auditors was explained to the Committee. The 
Audit plan that is being prepared by Mazars LLP as the external auditor 
is almost complete and this will be shared at the next meeting. There 
are currently no issues at this stage that need to be addressed.  
 
Discussion took place around the following areas: 

• Approaching external auditors – Mazars confirmed they are 
happy to be approached by members with questions if 
necessary. Internal Audit would also be more than happy to 
assist with any member questions 

• The Framework within which external audit operate and their 
consideration of materiality. 
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AGC 
05/17 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGC 
06/17 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGC 
07/17 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Resolved that the role of External Audit is noted 
 
INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 
 
Consideration was given to a report regarding the Internal Audit section 
and the progress made against the Audit Plan 2016/17  
A plan of work was agreed at the start of the year and an Audit Charter 
drawn up. Services delivered to the Combined Authority are in line with 
this charter and all areas are currently showing full or substantial 
assurance.  
It was explained that the current processes followed are Stockton 
Borough Council’s processes and that future audit will be more 
extensive with much larger sums of money to be considered.  
 
Discussion took place around the details of the report and it was 
requested that future documents provide explanations of audit 
recommendations so that members understand where there is a risk, 
what has been done to mitigate this and progress made. 
 
Resolved that all future reports will contain explanations of audit 
recommendations and respective progress  
 
INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER AND AUDIT PLAN 
 
Consideration was given to a report regarding the Internal Audit 
Charter and the proposed Audit plan for 2017/18 
 
Resolved that: 

1. The Committee approves the Internal Audit Charter,  
2. The Committee approves the proposed Audit plan for 2017-

2018  
3. The Committee notes the indicative strategic Audit Plan for 

2018-2022 
 
TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 
 
Consideration was given to a report regarding the Treasury 
Management Strategy approved by the Combined Authority Board in 
April 2016. It was advised that the Treasury Management Advisors for 
the Combined Authority were changed in January 2017 following a 
competitive tender process, the new advisors are Arlingclose 
 
Discussion took place around Combined Authority Investments and the 
return on these. It was explained that moving forward the Combined 
Authority will be looking at potential longer term/higher interest 
investments and better ways to maximise returns on investments. It 
was also explained that the Combined Authority currently has no 
borrowing and the Government order providing the powers is not 
expected to be place until the autumn.  

 
Resolved that the report be noted and a copy of the Investment plan be 
circulated to the Committee for their information.  
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AGC  
08/17 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGC 
09/17 

MANAGEMENT OF RISK 
 
A presentation was delivered by the Managing Director covering the 
management of risk in the current financial year.  
 
Discussion took place around the following areas: 
 

• EU funding.  The government has guaranteed funding 
commitments entered into up to the point of Brexit, and this has 
allowed the Tees Valley’s European programme to continue as 
planned.  There is however uncertainty as to what will happen 
after April 2019 with regard to any replacements for EU funding 
 

• Political Decision-Making – In response to a question from a 
member, the Managing Director described the process for 
collective decision-making through the Tees Valley Combined 
Authority constitution.  The Mayor, once appointed, will have 
powers to make proposals, and must be in the majority for 
decisions, to be agreed by the Combined Authority Cabinet.  A 
majority of leaders can also reject or amend the Mayor’s 
budget.  The new constitution seeks to avoid the risk of 
stalemate in decision-making as much as possible, but it is 
recognised that some risk remains.  

 
Resolved that the content of the presentation be noted 
 
WORK PROGRAMME 
 
Consideration was given to a draft work programme for the Committee  
 
Resolved that the Work Programme is agreed.  
 
DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
The date of the next meeting is to be agreed 
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AGENDA ITEM 6 

REPORT TO THE AUDIT AND 
 GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 
28th JUNE 2017 

 
REPORT OF THE CHIEF  

FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 

 
TERMS OF REFERENCE 

 
 
SUMMARY 

 
The Audit and Governance Committee are required to agree the terms of reference for the 
Committee for 2017/18. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
It is recommended that the Committee agree the terms of reference for the Audit and 
Governance Committee for 2017/18.  
 
DETAIL 

 
1. The terms of reference of the Audit and Governance Committee for 2017/18, will be 

included in the Constitution of the Tees Valley Combined Authority and are shown in 
Appendix 1. 
 

2. Following the mayoral election the Committee has been reconstituted in line with the 
new Constitution approved last month. The membership of the Committee includes 
an independent person for the purposes of providing advice in relation to standards 
matters under the Localism Act 2011, and one other independent person to assist the 
Committee in the discharge of its financial functions.  

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

3. None 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
4. That the Committee agree the terms of reference for the Audit and Governance 

Committee for 2017/18.  
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LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5. None 

 
RISK ASSESSMENT 

 
6. This Work Programme Report is categorised as low to medium risk. Existing 

management systems and daily routine activities are sufficient to control and reduce 
risk. 

 
CONSULTATION 

 
7. None 

 
Name of Contact Officer: Garry Cummings 
Post Title: Chief Financial Officer 
Telephone Number: 01642 527011 
Email Address: garry.cummings@stockton.gov.uk 
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Appendix 1 

 

Audit and Governance Committee – Terms of reference 

1. Our audit committee is a key component of Tees valley Combined Authority’s corporate 
governance. It provides an independent and high-level focus on the audit, assurance and reporting 
arrangements that underpin good governance and financial standards.  

2. The purpose of our audit committee is to provide independent assurance of the adequacy of the 
risk management framework and the internal control environment. It provides independent review 
of governance, risk management and control frameworks and oversees the financial reporting and 
annual governance processes. It oversees internal audit and external audit, helping to ensure 
efficient and effective assurance arrangements are in place.  

Governance, risk and control 

3. To review the Combined Authority’s corporate governance arrangements against the good 
governance framework and consider annual governance reports and assurances.  

4. To review the Annual Governance Statement prior to approval and consider whether it properly 
reflects the risk environment and supporting assurances, taking into account internal audit’s opinion 
on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Combined Authority’s framework of governance, 
risk management and control.  

5. To consider the Combined Authority’s arrangements to secure value for money and review 
assurances and assessments on the effectiveness of these arrangements.  

6. To consider the Combined Authority’s framework of assurance and ensure that it adequately 
addresses the risks and priorities of the Combined Authority.  

7. To agree the risk management strategy and monitor the effective development and operation of 
risk management in the Combined Authority.  

8. To monitor progress in addressing risk-related issues reported to the committee.  

9. To consider reports on the effectiveness of internal controls and monitor the implementation of 
agreed actions.  

10. To review the assessment of fraud risks and potential harm to the Combined Authority from 
fraud and corruption.  

11. To monitor the counter-fraud strategy, actions and resources.  
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Internal audit  

12. To approve the internal audit charter.  

13. To review proposals made in relation to the appointment of external providers of internal audit 
services and to make recommendations.  

14. To approve the risk-based internal audit plan, including internal audit’s resource requirements, 
the approach to using other sources of assurance and any work required to place reliance upon 
those other sources.  

15. To approve significant interim changes to the risk-based internal audit plan and resource 
requirements.  

16. To make appropriate enquiries of both management and the head of internal audit to determine 
if there are any inappropriate scope or resource limitations.  

17. To consider reports from the head of internal audit on internal audit’s performance during the 
year, including the performance of external providers of internal audit services. These will include:  

a) Updates on the work of internal audit including key findings, issues of concern and action 
In hand as a result of internal audit work.  

b) Regular reports on the results of the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme.  

c) Reports on instances where the internal audit function does not conform to the Public 
Sector Internal Audit Standards and Local Government Application Note, considering 
whether the non-conformance is significant enough that it must be included in the Annual 
Governance Statement.  

18. To consider the head of internal audit’s annual report:  

a) The statement of the level of conformance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 
and Local Government Application Note and the results of the Quality Assurance and 
Improvement Programme that supports the statement – these will indicate the reliability of 
the conclusions of internal audit.  

b) The opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Combined Authority’s 
framework of governance, risk management and control together with the summary of the 
work supporting the opinion – these will assist the committee in reviewing the Annual 
Governance Statement. 

19. To consider summaries of specific internal audit reports as requested.  
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20. To receive reports outlining the action taken where the head of internal audit has concluded that 
management has accepted a level of risk that may be unacceptable to the authority or there are 
concerns about progress with the implementation of agreed actions.  

21. To contribute to the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme and in particular, to the 
external quality assessment of internal audit that takes place at least once every five years.  

22. To consider a report on the effectiveness of internal audit to support the Annual Governance 
Statement, where required to do so by the Accounts and Audit Regulations.  

23. To support the development of effective communication with the head of internal audit.  

External audit  

24. To consider the external auditor’s annual letter, relevant reports, and the report to those 
charged with governance.  

25. To consider specific reports as agreed with the external auditor.  

26. To comment on the scope and depth of external audit work and to ensure it gives value for 
money.  

27. To commission work from internal and external audit.  

28. To advise and recommend on the effectiveness of relationships between external and internal 
audit and other inspection agencies or relevant bodies.  

Financial reporting  

29. To review the annual statement of accounts. Specifically, to consider whether appropriate 
accounting policies have been followed and whether there are concerns arising from the financial 
statements or from the audit that need to be brought to the attention of the Combined Authority.  

30. To consider the external auditor’s report to those charged with governance on issues arising 
from the audit of the accounts.  

Accountability arrangements  

31. To report to those charged with governance on the committee’s findings, conclusions and 
recommendations concerning the adequacy and effectiveness of their governance, risk management 
and internal control frameworks; financial reporting arrangements, and internal and external audit 
functions. 

32. To report to full Combined Authority on a regular basis on the committee’s performance in 
relation to the terms of reference and the effectiveness of the committee in meeting its purpose.  
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Standards 

33. To promote and maintain high standards of conduct by Combined Authority members and co-
opted members. 

34. To ensure the Combined Authority members and co-opted members observe the Members' 
Code of Conduct. 

35. To advise the Combined Authority Cabinet on the adoption or revision of the Members' Code of 
Conduct. 

36. To monitor complaints received by the Combined Authority in respect of Member conduct. 

37. To conduct hearings following investigation and determine complaints made against members 
and co-opted members. 

38. Where a member or co-opted member is found to have failed to comply with the Code of 
Conduct to take such action as may be necessary to promote and maintain high standards of 
conduct, in accordance with the powers available to the Committee.  

 

 

 



 

 

 

  

AGENDA ITEM 7 

REPORT TO THE AUDIT AND 
 GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 
28 JUNE 2017 

 
REPORT OF THE CHIEF  

FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 

 
INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17 

 
 
SUMMARY 

This is the annual report of the Head of Internal Audit as required by the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). The report includes the Audit & Risk Manager’s annual 
opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control and 
governance processes. As such it forms an integral part of the formulation of the Authority’s 
Annual Governance Statement.  

This report encompasses the reporting requirements specified in Standard 2450 of the 
PSIAS. 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

It is recommended that the Audit Committee receives the Annual Internal Audit Report for 
2016/17 incorporating the opinion on the Authority’s control environment (paragraph 1.7) and 
the performance of the Internal Audit Section. 

DETAIL 

Background 

1. Internal Audit is an independent appraisal function established by the Authority to 
objectively examine, evaluate and report on the adequacy of internal controls.  This 
role ensures that there is proper economic, efficient and effective use of resources.  It 
also ensures that the Authority has adequate accounting records and control 
systems. 

 
 
Current Position 

2. The attached report shows the current position in respect of the progress against the 
2016/2017 audit plan and the results of the work that has been undertaken. 
 

FINANCIAL AND LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 



3. None 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
4. That the Audit Committee receives the Annual Internal Audit Report for 2016/17 

incorporating the opinion on the Authority’s control environment (paragraph 1.7) and 
the performance of the Internal Audit Section. 

 
 

 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
5. None 
 
RISK ASSESSMENT 

 
6. When managers implement the recommendations agreed to, within the audit 

process, the risk of either, fraud, corruption or loss of property (including data) should 
be reduced 

 
CONSULTATION 

 
7. None 
 
Name of Contact Officer: Andrew Barber 
Post Title: Audit & Risk Manager 
Telephone Number: 01642 526176 
Email Address: a.barber@stockton.gov.uk 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 Members’ Interests  

 Members (including co-opted Members) should consider whether they have a personal 
interest in any item, as defined in paragraphs 9 and 11 of the Tees Valley Combined 
Authority’s (TVCA) code of conduct and, if so, declare the existence and nature of that 
interest in accordance with and/or taking account of paragraphs 12 - 17 of the code.  

Where a Member regards him/herself as having a personal interest, as described in 
paragraph 16 of the code, in any business of the TVCA he/she must then, in accordance 
with paragraph 18 of the code, consider whether that interest is one which a member of the 
public, with knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably regard as so significant that it 
is likely to prejudice the Member’s judgement of the public interest and the business:- 

• affects the members financial position or the financial position of a person or body 
described in paragraph 17 of the code, or 

• relates to the determining of any approval, consent, licence, permission or 
registration in relation to the member or any person or body described in paragraph 
17 of the code. 

 
A Member with a personal interest, as described in paragraph 18 of the code, may attend 
the meeting but must not take part in the consideration and voting upon the relevant item of 
business. However, a member with such an interest may make representations, answer 
questions or give evidence relating to that business before the business is considered or 
voted on, provided the public are also allowed to attend the meeting for the same purpose 
whether under a statutory right or otherwise (paragraph 19 of the code) 

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

It is a criminal offence for a member to participate in any discussion or vote on a matter in 
which he/she has a disclosable pecuniary interest (and where an appropriate dispensation 
has not been granted) paragraph 20 of the code. 

Members are required to comply with any procedural rule adopted by the TVCA which 
requires a member to leave the meeting room whilst the meeting is discussing a matter in 
which that member has a disclosable pecuniary interest (paragraph 21 of the code) 

 

 



 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT & 
OPINION STATEMENTS 

 

 

2016/17 

 



Internal Audit Annual Report and  
Opinion Statements 2014/2015 

 

 

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

Introduction 
 

1.1 Under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, the Authority is required to “undertake 
an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control 
and governance processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing standards 
or guidance”. For the purposes of the 2016/17 opinion the standards for proper 
practices for internal audit are laid down in the CIPFA Local Government Application 
Note for the United Kingdom Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). 

 

1.2 The relevant body must conduct a review, at least once a year, of the effectiveness of 
its system of internal control. Following the review the Authority must approve an 
Annual Governance Statement prepared in accordance with proper practices. The 
opinions given in this report provides independent and objective assurance on the 
overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Authority’s system of internal control.  

 

1.3 It is management’s responsibility to establish and maintain appropriate risk 
management processes, internal control systems, accounting records and governance 
arrangements. Internal Audit plays a vital role in advising management that these 
arrangements are in place and operating properly. 
 

Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme 
 

1.4 The Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP) required by the PSIAS 
are more prescriptive than the quality assurance framework required by the 2006 Code 
of Practice. The framework has been maintained during the year.  

 

Planned Coverage and Output 
 

1.5 The 2016/17 Audit Plan was approved by the Audit Committee on 1 March 2016. Best 
practice requires that audit resources should target those areas that represent the 
greatest risk to the Authority.  

1.6 The plan has to be flexible to allow for movement in the number of audits in the plan 
and days delivered to reflect changing client needs. The overall number of audit 
engagements will always be subject to change over the course of the year as audits 
may be deferred or no longer be required. Additional audits may be added if concerns 
are raised about a specific control area. 
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Overall Assurance 
 

1.7 As the Head of Internal Audit, I am required to provide the Authority with an opinion on 
the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control environment. In giving this 
opinion, it should be noted that assurance can never be absolute and, therefore, only 
reasonable assurance can be provided that there are no major weaknesses in these 
processes. In assessing the level of assurance to be given, I based my opinion on: 
 

• The written reports on all internal audit work completed during the course of the 
year and the subsequent audit opinions; 

• Any follow up exercises undertaken in respect of previous years’ internal audit work; 
• The proportion of Tees Valley Combined Authority’s audit need that has been 

covered within this period; 
• Any limitations which may have been placed on the scope of Internal Audit. (There 

have been no operational constraints placed upon Internal Audit, apart from agreed 
budgetary control provisions). 

 

 

Opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Authority’s 
governance, risk and control framework 

From the testing undertaken by the Internal Audit Section over the course of 
the year I am satisfied that sufficient assurance work has been undertaken to 
allow me to form a reasonable conclusion on the adequacy and effectiveness 
of the Authority’s control environment to support the preparation of the 
Annual Governance Statement. 

It is my opinion that the Combined Authority continues to have an 
appropriate, and overall, an effective system of internal control, upon which it 
can place reasonable reliance to deliver its objectives, and detect fraud and 
other malpractice within a reasonable period of time. 

Where weaknesses have been identified through internal audit work, we have 
worked with management to agree appropriate corrective actions and a 
timescale for introduction. 

 

 

Statement of conformance with the PSIAS 

The internal peer review carried out an assessment against the checklist 
included in the CIPFA Local Government Application Note to the PSIAS. The 
checklist runs to 35 pages and contains over 300 conformance targets. The 
self-assessment shows overwhelming compliance with the PSIAS. 
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The areas of non-compliance are as follows:- 

• Feedback is not sought from the Chair of the Audit Committee on the 
Director of Finance and Business Services performance appraisal, 

• The Internal Audit Service has not been subject to an external 
assessment. An external assessment is only required every five years, 
and as 2013/14 was the first year that these standards were in place 
attention has been focussed on amending  procedures where 
necessary to ensure compliance. A strategy will be put in place to 
comply with this requirement before the five years have elapsed.    

 

Many of the compliance targets relate to consulting engagements. As the 
Internal Audit Section does not undertake any such engagements, the 
answers to these questions have to be “no”.  

 

 

 

 



Internal Audit Annual Report and  
Opinion Statements 2014/2015 

 

2 QUALITY ASSURANCE AND IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME 
(QAIP) 
 

2.1 Internal Audit is defined in the PSIAS as:- 
“Internal auditing is an independent, objective and consulting activity designed to add 
value and improve an organisations operations. It helps an organisation accomplish 
its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve 
the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance processes”. 

Adherence to the PSIAS ensures that Internal Audit complies with this definition. 

2.2 In addition to the performance information shown below the following is evidence 
demonstrating Internal Audit’s compliance with the PSIAS:- 
• Independence/no interference – There has been no interference during the year 

that would require the escalation processes to be invoked. 
• Access to records – The service has been provided access to all 

records/personnel required to undertake the work in the plan. 
• Director of Finance and Business Services’ operational responsibility – 

Appropriate arrangements have been put in place to allow an objective opinion of 
the other operational services for which the Director of Finance and Business 
Services has responsibility. 

• Staff skills mix – An appropriate mix of staff has been in place throughout the 
year as defined in the audit competency framework. 

• Staff training – Training has been given to staff as required including a staff away 
day. Staff have also completed a minimum of 20 hours CPD. 

• Code of Conduct for Auditors – All auditors have signed up to an audit code of 
conduct and there is no evidence that this has not been complied with. 

 

2.3 Stockton on Tees and Darlington Borough Councils’ currently operate a public/public 
partnership for ICT and Transactional Finance Services. Stockton’s Internal Audit 
Section provide the Internal Audit Service for the partnership and provides copies of 
the internal audit reports in these areas to Darlington Borough Council to provide 
assurance that the control environment of the partnership is effective.  

Performance Indicators 
 
2.4 The PSIAS are unequivocal in that a QAIP must include both internal and external 

assessments: internal assessments are both ongoing and periodical and external 
assessments at least once every five years. 
 

2.5 In previous years a member of the Corporate Governance Group undertook a peer 
review to assess the effectiveness of internal audit and compliance with the new 
standards. The previous review concluded:- 
 

• The Internal Audit service complies fully with all key requirements of the 
Standards, and overall the level of compliance is very high.   

• On the basis of the assessment and supporting evidence the Internal Audit 
service is shown to be well managed.  It provides a good standard of service 
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covering all key aspects of its remit and is well regarded and effectively utilised 
by senior management.  

• No significant issues have been identified by the assessment process.  The 
opportunities for improvement will improve service delivery and effectiveness, but 
they do not in themselves represent a material risk to the Internal Audit service or 
its ability to deliver the audit programme.   
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3 AUDIT PROGRESS  
 

2016/17 Unplanned Audits Added to the Plan 
 
Name Audit Type Comments 

SSI Fund 
Review 

Combined 
Authority  - 
Unplanned 

Concerns over fraudulent claims. No issues identified other than 
those already picked up by checks and balances in place, these 
were strengthened even further. 
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 2016/17 Audit Plan Current Position as at 31 May 2017 
 

Audit 
ID Name Status Assurance 

Recommendations 

L M H C 

2440 
Officer Payments Mileage 
2016/17 Complete Substantial Assurance 0 1 0 0 

2445 Debtors 2016/17 Complete Full Assurance 0 0 0 0 

2449 Active Directory 2016/17 Complete Full Assurance 0 0 0 0 

2450 Virtualisation 2016/17 Complete Full Assurance 0 0 0 0 

2457 
Absence Management 
2016/2017 Complete Full Assurance 0 0 0 0 

2463 Creditors 2016/2017 Complete Substantial Assurance 0 1 0 0 

2470 
Payroll & Absence Recording 
2016/2017 Complete Substantial Assurance 0 0 0 0 

2471 
Recruitment Services 
2016/2017 Complete Substantial Assurance 0 0 0 0 
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2481 
Officer's Travel & Subsistence 
2016/2017 Complete Full Assurance 0 0 0 0 

2509 Grant Audit Work 2016/2017 Complete Full Assurance 0 0 0 0 

2510 
Combined Authority - Growth 
Fund Complete  Full Assurance 0 0 0 0 

2511 SSI Fund Review Complete  N/A See Above 0 0 0 0 
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Audit progress
Purpose of this report 

The purpose of this paper is to provide the Audit and Governance 

Committee with a report on progress in delivering our responsibilities as 

your external auditors. 

This paper also seeks to highlight key emerging national issues and 

developments which may be of interest to members of the Audit and 

Governance Committee. 

If you require any additional information regarding the issues included 

within this briefing, please contact any member of your engagement team. 

Finally, please note our website address (www.mazars.co.uk) which sets 

out the range of work Mazars carries out, both within the UK and abroad.  

It also details the existing work Mazars does in the public sector. 

 

Progress on the audit 
Since the Committee last met, we have: 

• completed our initial audit planning processes that inform our 
Audit Strategy Memorandum, which will be presented to the Audit 
Committee at its June 2017 meeting; 

• had ongoing liaison with finance in respect of planning for the 
2016/17 final audit visit; 

• continued to update our accounts and VFM planning in readiness 
for our year end on site audit, such as completion of our IT risk 
assessment, and ongoing review of agendas/minutes; 

• started our final audit visit, starting our audit of the financial 
statements in early June. We are aiming for our audit to be 
substantially complete by the end of July, in line with the new 
timetable that will be introduced for 2017/18. 

Our audit work is on track for this time of year, and we have no matters to 
raise with the Committee at this stage of our audit. 

Appendix 1 provides a summary of progress for our 2016/17 audit. 

 

Certification of claims and returns 

As members will be aware, the Authority can sometimes be required by 
funding bodies to arrange independent certification of a range of grant 
claims and returns. 

We have not undertaken any work on claims and returns since our last 
progress report, and as such there are no matters to report in this progress 
report. 
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National publications and other updates  
 

 National publications and other updates 

1. Integrating health and social care, Public Accounts Committee, April 2017 

2. Financial sustainability of schools, National Audit Office, December 2016 

3. Capital funding for schools, National Audit Office, February 2017 

4.  Planning for 100% local retention of business rates, National Audit Office, March 2017 

5. 2017-18 work programme and scale of fees, Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd, March 2017 

6. Oversight of audit quality: quarterly compliance reports 2016/17, Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd 

7. Questions an Audit Committee could ask relating to the Annual Report and Accounts, National Audit Office, March 2017 

 

1. Integrating health and social care, Public Accounts Committee, April 2017 

Further to a National Audit Report on the Better Care Fund and various PAC hearings, the Public Accounts Committee published a report on integrating 
health and social care.  

The conclusions and recommendations are summarised below.  

• The Departments do not know what is the most effective balance of limited funding across health and social care. The Department and NHS England 
should assess the impact that financial pressure in social care is having on the NHS, so that it can better understand the nature of the problem and 
how it can be managed. 

• The Departments and NHS England should reassess whether the Better Care Fund in its current form is still necessary and should identify what has 
worked well so this can be brought into sustainability and transformation planning. 

• NHS England and the Local Government Association should encourage and support the full involvement of local government in the sustainability and 
transformation planning process. Working with their local authority partners, local health bodies should improve the involvement of local populations 
in the planning process. 

• The Departments, NHS England and the Local Government Association must take responsibility for the performance of their programmes, including 
the Better Care Fund while it continues. We expect greater accountability and more realistic objectives, which the Departments and partners will 
stand by. 

https://www.publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm201617/cmselect/cmpubacc/959/95902.htm 
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2. Financial sustainability of schools, National Audit Office, December 2016 

The Department of Education’s approach to managing the risks to schools’ financial sustainability cannot be judged to be effective or providing value for 
money until more progress is made, according to the National Audit Office. The Department estimates that mainstream schools will have to find savings of 
£3.0 billion (8.0%) by 2019-20 to counteract cumulative cost pressures, such as pay rises and higher employer contributions to national insurance and the 
teachers’ pension scheme. It expects that schools will need to make efficiency savings through better procurement (estimated savings of £1.3 billion) and by 
using their staff more efficiently (the balance of £1.7 billion).  

However, the Department has not clearly communicated to schools the scale and pace of the savings required. While it can show, on the basis of 
benchmarking analysis, that schools should be able to achieve such savings without affecting educational outcomes, it does not know whether schools will 
achieve them in practice. 

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/financial-sustainability-in-schools/ 

3. Capital funding for schools, National Audit Office, February 2017 

The Department for Education, working with local authorities and schools, has created a large number of new school places and is making progress in 
improving schools in the worst condition, but significant challenges remain, according to the National Audit Office. 

Between 2010 and 2015, the Department and local authorities created 599,000 new school places at a cost of £7.5 billion, mostly in good or outstanding 
schools, enabling them to meet the growing demand for places. The Department has also improved how it estimates the need for school places, collecting more 
localised forecasts of pupil numbers, and allocates money more closely according to need. 

According to the NAO, the expected deterioration in the condition of the school estate is a significant risk to long-term value for money. Responsibility for 
maintaining the condition of school buildings is devolved to schools, multi-academy trusts and local authorities. The Department’s property data survey 
estimates it would cost £6.7 billion to return all school buildings to satisfactory or better condition, and a further £7.1 billion to bring parts of school buildings 
from satisfactory to good condition. The most common major defects are problems with electrics and external walls. 

While the Department cannot yet assess reliably how the condition of the school estate is changing over time, it estimates that the cost of dealing with major 
defects in the estate will double between 2015-16 and 2020-21, even with current levels of funding, as many buildings near the end of their useful lives. Much 
of the school estate is over 40 years old, with 60% built before 1976. 

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/capital-funding-for-schools/ 

4. Planning for 100% local retention of business rates, National Audit Office, March 2017 

The Department for Communities and Local Government has made progress in designing the scheme for 100% retention of business rates by local 
authorities, but the scale of the remaining challenges presents clear risks both to the timely delivery of the initiative and to the achievement of its overall 
objectives, according to the National Audit Office. 

By allowing local authorities to retain 100% of business rates, the Department hopes that this will incentivise them to grow their tax bases by adopting pro-
development planning practices which in turn will support economic growth. But tax base growth does not necessarily mean economic growth: new 
developments might lead to the relocation of existing economic activities rather than the creation of new ones, for instance. The Department needs to 
understand the link between business rates and economic growth to ensure that the scheme is configured to maximise economic growth rather than just 
growth in the tax base. 
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https://www.nao.org.uk/report/planning-for-100-local-retention-of-business-rates/ 

5. 2017-18 work programme and scale of fees, Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd, March 2017 

PSAA has published the work programme and scales of fees for 2017/18 audits of principal local government and police bodies. There are no changes to the 
overall work programme for 2017/18. Scale fees for 2017/18 have therefore been set at the same level as the fees applicable for 2016/17. This is the final 
year for which PSSA will set fees under the transitional arrangements made by DCLG.  

http://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-and-certification-fees/201718-work-programme-and-scales-of-fees/ 

6. Oversight of audit quality: quarterly compliance reports 2016/17, Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd 

The latest 2016/17 monitoring report highlights full compliance with the Regulator’s standards for Mazars LLP. 
   
http://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/principal-audits/mazars-audit-quality/ 

7. Questions an Audit Committee could ask relating to the Annual Report and Accounts, National Audit Office, March 2017 

This note is designed to assist Audit committees in their review of the Annual Report and Accounts of their organisation. It provides a series of questions that 
the Committee could ask during their review to assist them in both ensuring the completeness, accuracy and balance of the information provided in the 
Annual Report and Accounts and in understanding the key issues and providing suitable challenge in order to gain the assurance they require before 
recommending the Annual Report and Accounts for signature by the Accounting Officer. 
 

https://www.nao.org.uk/search/type/report/pi_area/support-to-audit-committees/ 
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Appendix 1 – Position statement of 2016/17 audit 
 

Planned output 
Expected completion 
date 

Draft report issued to 
management 

Final report issued to 
management 

Final report presented 
to Audit Committee 

Comments 

2016/17 Audit Fee Letter 
~ N/A February 2017 N/A ~ 

Audit Committee 
Progress Report and 
Briefing 

N/A N/A N/A N/A 
To each and every 

meeting. 

2016/17 Audit Strategy 
Memorandum 
 

April 2017 April 2017 May 2017 June 2017 ~ 

2016/17 Audit Completion 
Report, incorporating: 
 
• Opinion on the 

financial statements; 
and 

• VFM Conclusion. 
 

August 2017     

2016/17 Annual Audit 
Letter 
 

September 2017     
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Contact details 
 
 

Please let us know if you would like further information on any items in this report.  

www.mazars.co.uk 

 

Mark Kirkham 
Partner 
0191 383 6300 
mark.kirkham@mazars.co.uk 
 

 

Gareth Roberts 
Senior Manager 
0191 383 6323 
gareth.roberts@mazars.co.uk 
 

 

 

Mazars LLP 
Salvus House 
Aykley Heads 
Durham 
DH1 5TS 
 

 

 

 

 



 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM 9 

REPORT TO THE AUDIT AND 
 GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 
28 JUNE 2017 

 
REPORT OF THE MANAGING DIRECTOR  

AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 

 
DRAFT ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2016/17 

 
 
SUMMARY 

 
This report presents to Members the Authority’s draft Annual Governance Statement for 
2016/17. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
It is recommended that Members note the draft Annual Governance Statement for 2016/17 
and provide comments for consideration by Cabinet. 

 
DETAIL 

 
1. The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require all authorities in England to 

conduct a review at least once a year of the effectiveness of its governance 
framework and produce an Annual Governance Statement to accompany its 
Statement of Accounts.  The deadline for completion of the Statement of Accounts 
for 2016/17 is 30 June 2017 at which point they are subject to the external audit 
process. 
 

2. The audited Statement of Accounts and the Annual Governance Statement will be 
presented for approval to Cabinet on the 29 September, 2017. 

 
3. A further requirement of the regulations state that the Statement should be signed by 

the Managing Director and the Mayor, following approval by Cabinet.  A key objective 
of this signing off process is to secure corporate ownership of the statement’s 
contents. 

 
4. The Annual Governance Statement includes an acknowledgement of responsibility 

for ensuring that proper arrangements are in place around the governance of its 
affairs and an indication of the level of assurance that the system provides.  The 
statement also includes a description of the key elements forming the governance 
framework, a description of the process applied in reviewing the effectiveness of this 
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framework, including the system of internal control, and an outline of the actions 
taken or, proposed to be taken, to deal with significant governance issues. 
 

5. The Combined Authority’s draft Annual Governance Statement for 2016/17 is 
attached at Appendix 1.  At this time the Authority has not identified any significant 
issues that are not being addressed within the Statement.   

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

6. None directly from this report 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
7. It is recommended that Members note the draft Annual Governance Statement 

for 2016/17 and provide comments for consideration by Cabinet. 
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
8. The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require all English authorities to prepare 

an Annual Governance Statement and for it to accompany the Statement of 
Accounts. 

 
RISK ASSESSMENT 

 
9. None directly from this report 

 
CONSULTATION 

 
10. None 

 
Name of Contact Officer: Garry Cummings 
Post Title: Chief Financial Officer 
Telephone Number: 01642 527011 
Email Address: garry.cummings@stockton.gov.uk 
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 Members’ Interests  

 Members (including co-opted Members) should consider whether they have a personal 
interest in any item, as defined in paragraphs 9 and 11 of the Tees Valley Combined 
Authority’s (TVCA) code of conduct and, if so, declare the existence and nature of that 
interest in accordance with and/or taking account of paragraphs 12 - 17 of the code.  

Where a Member regards him/herself as having a personal interest, as described in 
paragraph 16 of the code, in any business of the TVCA he/she must then, in accordance 
with paragraph 18 of the code, consider whether that interest is one which a member of the 
public, with knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably regard as so significant that it 
is likely to prejudice the Member’s judgement of the public interest and the business:- 

• affects the members financial position or the financial position of a person or body 
described in paragraph 17 of the code, or 

• relates to the determining of any approval, consent, licence, permission or 
registration in relation to the member or any person or body described in paragraph 
17 of the code. 

 
A Member with a personal interest, as described in paragraph 18 of the code, may attend 
the meeting but must not take part in the consideration and voting upon the relevant item of 
business. However, a member with such an interest may make representations, answer 
questions or give evidence relating to that business before the business is considered or 
voted on, provided the public are also allowed to attend the meeting for the same purpose 
whether under a statutory right or otherwise (paragraph 19 of the code) 

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

It is a criminal offence for a member to participate in any discussion or vote on a matter in 
which he/she has a disclosable pecuniary interest (and where an appropriate dispensation 
has not been granted) paragraph 20 of the code. 

Members are required to comply with any procedural rule adopted by the TVCA which 
requires a member to leave the meeting room whilst the meeting is discussing a matter in 
which that member has a disclosable pecuniary interest (paragraph 21 of the code) 

 



Intentionally Blank for Printing 
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Appendix 1 

 

Draft Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 

 

Introduction 
 

1. The Tees Valley Combined Authority (TVCA) was established in April 2016 as a new 
legal body that brings together the five Authorities which serve Darlington, Hartlepool, 
Middlesbrough, Redcar and Cleveland and Stockton, alongside private sector 
representation from the region’s Local Enterprise Partnership. The TVCA is 
responsible for a number of transport functions and economic development and 
growth across the combined area 
 

2. 2016/17 was a transition year, preparing the organisation to undertake new 
responsibilities. A new Managing Director was appointed in July 2016 and a capacity 
review undertaken to reflect the increasing levels of responsibilities and funding 
including the transition to mayoral governance arrangements effective from May 
2017. The transition to a new Mayoral Combined Authority was approved by each of 
the constituent councils.  A revised Strategic Economic Plan was established.  A new 
constitution was agreed in consultation with the constituent authorities, underpinning 
the new statutory framework established by the Tees Valley Combined Authority 
(Functions and Amendment) Order 2017; including arrangements for Audit and 
Scrutiny.  The Authority also agreed its first Investment Plan setting out its financial 
framework for the 2017-21 period, and established a clearer budget-setting process.  
An Assurance process was agreed with central government. 
 

3. Measures taken during this transition year helped to prepare the Authority for the 
election of the new Tees Valley Mayor on 4th May 2017, at which point the new 
governance arrangements became fully established. 
 

Scope of Responsibility 
 
 

4. The Tees Valley Combined Authority is responsible for ensuring that its business is 
conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is 
safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and 
effectively. The Combined Authority also has a duty under the Local Government Act 
1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which 
its functions are exercised. 

 

5. The Authority has established governance arrangements which are consistent with 
the principles of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) 
and Society of Local Authority Chief Executives (SOLACE) Framework - Delivering 
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Good Governance in Local Government. A copy of the Authority’s Constitution is 
available on its website at  
 
https://teesvalley-ca.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/05/TVCA-Constitution-Document-
2017.pdf. 
 
The Annual Governance Statement sets out how the Authority has complied with the 
Code and also meets the requirements of regulation 6(1) of the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2015 in relation to a review of the effectiveness of the Internal Control 
system. 

 

The Purpose of the Governance Framework 
 

6. The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and 
values that direct and control our activities and through which we account to, engage 
with and lead the community. It enables the authority to monitor the achievement of 
its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the 
delivery of appropriate, cost effective services. 
 

7. The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed 
to manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve 
policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not 
absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an 
ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the 
Combined Authority’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of 
those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage 
them efficiently, effectively and economically.  
 

8. A governance framework has been in place at the Tees Valley Combined Authority 
for the year ended 31 March 2017 and up to the date of approval of the statement of 
accounts.  A revised Constitution was agreed by the Authority in February 2017 to 
reflect governance arrangements post-election of the Tees Valley Mayor in May 
2017. This Constitution has been developed in consultation with the Constituent 
Authorities and in parallel to the legislative process which defines the specific powers 
and functions transferred to the Combined Authority and the Mayor. 
 

9. The Combined Authority has maintained a clear position that the establishment of the 
Mayor should be accompanied by effective checks and balances, with the constituent 
authorities continuing to play a strong role in governance, and with transparent 
decision-making and effective scrutiny. These principles were embedded in the 
governance scheme put forward by the Combined Authority, and were confirmed by 
public consultation, and a series of constitutional workshops held in each council, 
and with the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 

 
 
 

https://teesvalley-ca.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/05/TVCA-Constitution-Document-2017.pdf
https://teesvalley-ca.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/05/TVCA-Constitution-Document-2017.pdf
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The Authority’s Vision 
 

10. There is a clear vision of our purpose and intended outcomes for citizens and service 
users that is clearly communicated, both within and outside the organisation. The 
ambition is for Tees Valley to become a high value, low carbon, diverse and inclusive 
economy:- 

a. rapid and sustainable economic growth to benefit the Tees Valley and the 
whole of the UK; 

b. improved life chances and opportunities for communities so that local people 
directly benefit through improved prosperity and wellbeing; and 

c. real strength and vibrancy as a place in which to live, work, study, visit and 
invest. 

 
11.  These aspirations and goals, along with the Combined Authority’s plan for delivering 

them, are laid down in the refreshed Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) and in a new 
Investment Plan setting out deliverables by 2026 and 2040. Our ambition 
incorporates economic, social and environmental priorities and will allow all partners 
to work towards a sustainable and socially responsible Tees Valley. 
 

12. Underlying this ambition is a commitment to improving the lifetime opportunities for 
local people, tackling some of the difficult challenges of social exclusion, providing 
opportunities across all of the Tees Valley including rural areas and disadvantaged 
communities, thereby ensuring that all citizens are able to share in the benefits of 
economic growth. The SEP is focused around six thematic building blocks which 
reflect the main priorities and areas of activities over the next ten years to unlock 
transformational growth:- 
 

a. Business Growth: Further increase jobs and business density through 
targeted support to create and attract new companies and to grow businesses 
and sectors with high growth  

b. Research, Development, Innovation & Energy: Further enhance 
productivity in all core sectors through the commercialisation of knowledge; 

c. Education, Employment & Skills: Ensure a labour market which meets the 
needs of local business and supports the lifetime opportunities of all our 
residents; 

d. Place: Promote the Tees Valley as the preferred location in the UK for energy 
intensive indigenous firms and Foreign Direct Investment and create the 
conditions necessary to attract businesses and individuals with a focus on 
vibrant town centres; 

e. Culture: Change the external perceptions  of Tees Valley through the arts, 
cultural and leisure offer, create places that attract and retain businesses and 
business leaders, and make the area an attractive place to live, work and 
visit; and 

f. Transport & Infrastructure: Facilitate local, regional, national and 
international road, rail and broadband connectivity through collaborative 
investment in physical infrastructure.  
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13. A set of indicative activities and output targets is identified within the Strategic 
Economic Plan (SEP) for the six priorities as well as an assessment of overall 
impact.  
 

14. The Strategic Economic and Investment Plan sets out our priorities and the 
significant actions we will take. These, in turn, shape the activity of our various 
services and how we will focus our resources. We are clear where we need to get to 
and what we need to do to get there. 
 

15. An Investment Plan was agreed in March 2017, setting out how the Combined 
Authority will use its resources to deliver the Strategic Economic Plan, during the 
2017-21 period.  The Investment Plan will be reviewed in autumn 2017, in line with 
Constitutional arrangements and to reflect the views of the incoming Mayor, and will 
be reviewed annually thereafter. 

 

The Governance Framework 
 

1. Arrangements are in place to review our vision and its implications for the authority’s 
governance arrangements. The annual strategic planning process, engagement and 
participation with partners and stakeholders will ensure the authority’s vision remains 
relevant and meets the needs of local communities. There will be regular reviews of 
the local Code of Corporate Governance to ensure that it is up to date and effective.  
 

2. Arrangements are in place to measure the quality of our services, to ensure they are 
delivered in line with our objectives and for ensuring that they provide value for 
money. There are performance management arrangements in place including an 
annual appraisal scheme for staff. Services are delivered by suitably qualified / 
trained / experienced staff and all posts have detailed job descriptions/ person 
specifications. 
 

3. The roles and responsibilities of Authority members and employees are clearly 
documented. The Authority’s Constitution sets out how the Authority operates. It 
incorporates a scheme of delegation, indicates responsibilities for functions and sets 
out how decisions are made. The Constitution is subject to regular review, with 
substantive changes requiring the unanimous agreement of the Authority’s Cabinet. 
 

4.  The Constitution includes Rules of Procedure and various Codes and Protocols that 
set out standards of behaviour for members and officers. 
 

5. During the year a system of scrutiny was in place allowing the scrutiny function to:- 
 

a.  review or scrutinise decisions made, or other action taken, in connection with 
the discharge of any functions which are the responsibility of the Combined 
Authority; 

b. make reports or recommendations to the Combined Authority with respect to 
the discharge of any functions which are the responsibility of the Combined 
Authority 
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c. Make reports or recommendations to the Combined Authority on matters that 
affect the authority’s area or the inhabitants of the area 
 

6. In the new constitution Overview and Scrutiny can “call-in” for review or scrutinise 
decisions made by the Combined Authority, but not implemented, and to direct that 
that decision is not implemented while it is under review or scrutiny. 
 

7. The Combined Authority has secured provision of certain of its administrative 
functions (including legal, procurement, finance, human resources and ICT) with a 
view to their more economical, efficient and effective discharge through delegation to 
Stockton-On-Tees Borough Council 
 

8. A range of financial and HR policies and procedures are in place, as well as risk 
management processes which are in the process of being strengthened under a 
review of the strategy. Investments adhere to the single pot assurance framework 
agreed with government to ensure we are open and accountable for our decisions. It 
will be reviewed again later in the year to ensure it remains fit for purpose. There are 
comprehensive budgeting systems in place and a robust system of budgetary 
control, including quarterly and annual financial reports, which indicate financial 
performance against forecasts. 
 

9. The authority’s financial management arrangements conform to the governance 
requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in 
Local Government (2010). The Chief Finance Officer (under Section 73 of the Local 
Government Act 1985) fulfils this role through the following:  
 

a. Attendance at meetings of Directors Management Team, helping it to develop 
and implement strategy and to resource and deliver the Authority’s strategic 
objectives sustainably and in the public interest;  

b. Involvement in all material business decisions to ensure immediate and 
longer term implications, opportunities and risks are fully considered; 

c. Alignment of medium term business and financial planning processes;  
d. Leading the promotion and delivery of good financial management by the 

whole organisation so that public money is safeguarded and used 
appropriately, economically, efficiently and effectively;  and 

e. Ensuring that the finance function is resourced to be fit for purpose.  
 

10. The role of the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) is currently provided through Stockton-
on –Tees Borough Council but with effect from August 2017 the Combined Authority 
will be employing directly its own CFO working across both the Tees Valley 
Combined Authority and the new South Tees Mayoral Development Corporation. 
 

11. The Combined Authority has an Audit and Governance Committee which, undertakes 
an assurance and advisory role to: 
 
Audit 

a. To consider the effectiveness of the TVCA’s risk management arrangements, 
the control environment and associated anti-fraud and anti-corruption 
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arrangements, and seek assurance from the Chief Officers, Internal Audit and 
External Audit that action is being taken on risk related issues within the 
organisation. 

b. To consider internal audit annual reports and opinions; and consider a review 
of the effectiveness of the system of internal audit. 
 

Standards 
 

c. To promote and maintain high standards of conduct by TVCA members and 
co-opted members. 

d. To ensure the TVCA members and co-opted members observe the Members' 
Code of Conduct. 

e. To advise the Combined Authority Board on the adoption or revision of the 
Members' Code of Conduct. 

f. To monitor complaints received by the TVCA in respect of Member conduct. 
g. To conduct hearings following investigation and determine complaints made 

against members and co-opted members. 
h. Where a member or co-opted member is found to have failed to comply with 

the Code of Conduct to take such action as may be necessary to promote 
and maintain high standards of conduct, in accordance with the powers 
available to the Committee. 
 

12. The Authority recognises the need to review its Counter fraud strategy policy 
designed to encourage prevention, promote detection, ensure effective investigation 
where suspected fraud or corruption has occurred; and prosecute offenders where 
appropriate. 

 
13.  We have arrangements to ensure compliance with relevant laws, regulations, 

internal policies and procedures, and that expenditure is lawful. The Commercial and 
Legal Manager at Redcar and Cleveland Borough Council is the Authority’s 
designated Monitoring Officer and a protocol is in place with all directors, to 
safeguard the legality of all Authority activities. All Cabinet Reports are considered for 
legal issues before submission to members. 
 

14. Arrangements for confidential reporting (whistle-blowing) and for receiving and 
investigating complaints are in place. We are committed to maintaining these 
arrangements to ensure that, where any individual has concerns regarding the 
conduct of any aspect of the Authority’s business, they can easily report their 
concerns. The whistle blowing arrangements support the maintenance of a strong 
regime of internal control. 
 

15. Members are experienced in their roles for the Combined Authority, and undertake 
designated portfolio roles in support of Cabinet decision-making; supported by lead 
officers for that portfolio area. The Authority recognises that managing the 
performance of all of employees is key to ensuring that the organisation meets the 
needs of the community. This includes assessing ability against requirements of the 
role focusing on strengths and highlighting areas of weakness, job related training, 
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and on-going evaluation of the extent to which employees understand and support 
the values of the Authority. 
 

16. Channels of communication have been established with all sections of the 
community to promote accountability and encourage open consultation. We are 
committed to listening to, and acting upon, the views of the local community and 
carry out consultation in order to make sure that services meet the needs of local 
people. The Authority maintains an active social media presence, and ensures full 
transparency of its policies and decision-making. 
 

17. We continue to work closely with all our partners including the local enterprise 
partnership, other public bodies, the Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise 
(VCSE) sector and the private sector. We have established proportionate 
governance arrangements for all partnerships. 
 

18. The Combined Authority has agreed to the formal designation of the South Tees area 
as a Mayoral Development Corporation (to be named the “South Tees Development 
Corporation” (STDC)). The Mayor is to formally propose the creation of the STDC to 
the Secretary of State, thereby initiating the next stage of the statutory process. In 
parallel, the Authority’s Cabinet have agreed a constitution for the STDC which sets 
out the statutory framework, its core objectives, how decisions are made, board 
arrangements and powers. It determines the checks and balances on the application 
of those powers, getting the right balance between the freedom of the STDC to make 
commercial arrangements to meet is objectives, with the need to be prudent and 
accountable as a public body. The constitution includes a “referral mechanism”, to 
ensure that decisions which generate significant risks and liabilities have to be 
escalated to the Combined Authority for ratification. Other aspects of the constitution, 
including the role of a joint Combined Authority/STDC Finance Director, and its Audit 
Committee. 
 
 

Review of Effectiveness 
 

 
19. The Combined Authority has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review 

of the effectiveness of its governance framework including the system of internal 
control. 
 

20. The Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer have directed, co-ordinated and 
overseen the review and its findings have been reported to the Audit and 
Governance Committee for their consideration of the Annual Governance Statement. 
 

21. The review is informed by a number of assurances gathered from all available 
sources and in particular:- 
 

a. Assurances from senior officers responsible for relevant specialist areas. 
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b. Stockton Borough Council provides the internal audit service to the Combined 
Authority. Internal Audit has liaised with the relevant statutory officers during 
the year to assist in the adequacy and effectiveness of the Authority’s existing 
systems of internal control. The Head of Internal Audit’s annual assurance 
opinion is reproduced below from his annual report to the Audit and 
Governance Committee – 

 
“It is my opinion that the Combined Authority continues to have an 
appropriate, and overall, an effective system of internal control, upon which it 
can place reasonable reliance to deliver its objectives, and detect fraud and 
other malpractice within a reasonable period of time. Where weaknesses 
have been identified through internal audit work, we have worked with 
management to agree appropriate corrective actions and a timescale for 
introduction.” 

 
c. Monitoring by the Authority and the Department of Communities and Local 

Government of an Assurance Process, agreed with government as a 
condition for exercising devolved responsibilities for funding (through the so-
called “single pot” of unringfenced funding).  The Authority has provided a 
high level of assurance through this process, with measures taken to improve 
transparency and clarify the requirements for due diligence on individual 
investments. 
 

22. The outcome of the review of effectiveness provided us with the necessary 
assurance that no significant issues were identified. The findings of the review have 
been reported to the Audit and Governance Committee and the actions required to 
improve it. The areas to be addressed with actions are outlined in the improvement 
plan. 
 

23. We propose over the coming year to take steps to implement the improvement plan 
to further enhance the Authority’s governance arrangements. We are satisfied that 
these steps will address the need for improvements that were identified in the review 
and we will monitor their implementation and operation as part of the next annual 
review 
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IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

Action Outcome Responsibility By When 

Review the Local Code 
of Corporate Governance 

Updated code  Governance 
Manager 

31st March 2018 

Review and update the 
Authority’s Constitution 
including scheme of 
delegation 

Updated constitution Managing Director 31st March 2018 

Review of Assurance 
Framework 

Updated Framework Investment Director 31st December 2017 

LEP “Buddy” Review Update as required Strategy Director 30th September 2017 

Update Risk 
Management Strategy 

Updated Strategy Governance 
Manager 

30th September 2017 

Update Counter Fraud 
Strategy 

Updated Strategy Head of Internal 
Audit 

31st March 2018 

 

 

 

By order of the authority 

Signed:                                                         Signed: 

 

 

A Lewis  B Houchen 

Managing Director                                              Mayor   

Date:  Date 
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AGENDA ITEM 10 

REPORT TO THE AUDIT AND 
 GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 
28 JUNE 2017 

 
REPORT OF THE  

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 

DRAFT STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2016/17 
 
PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
This report presents to Members the Authority’s Draft Statement of Accounts for 2016/17. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
It is recommended that Members note the Draft Statement of Accounts for 2016/17. 
 
DETAIL 
 

1. The accounts have been completed in accordance with the “Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17” which is prepared under 
International Financial Reporting Standards. 

 
2. The Accounts and Audit Regulations (England) 2015 came in to effect on 1st April 

2015. The regulations change the arrangements for the approval and publication of 
the Statement of Accounts and the Annual Governance Statement. Under the 
regulations the Authority must publish its audited Statement of Accounts and 
approved Annual Governance Statement by 30th September for 2016/17. Thereafter 
the publication date becomes 31st July. 

 
3. The period in which the public have the right to examine the accounts, question the 

auditor and to make objections at audit has also changed. This is now a period of 30 
working days which for 2016/17 must include the first ten working days of July. In 
2018 this will become the first ten working days of June. The inspection period for 
this year commences today and will end on 9th August 2017. 

 
4. The following key financial issues are included in the accounts: 

 
• The Authority’s earmarked reserves amounted to £85.4 million; this is 

predominantly earmarked general fund reserves and capital grants unapplied.  
 

• TVCA’s investment in the Tees Valley in 2016/17 was £44.2m. 
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• Investments and Cash amount to £78.0 million.  The majority of these funds are 
held with other Local Authority’s, in bank deposits or invested in Money Market 
Funds. 

 
• The level of TVCA Core balances at the 31st March stands at £0.668 million.  

 
• The Authority’s Pension Scheme liability stands at £1.714m at the 31st March.  

 
5. The external auditors, Mazars LLP have already commenced the statutory audit. 

Their update report is included elsewhere on the agenda. 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 

6. TVCA Core Balances as at the 31st March 2017 are £668,000. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

7. It is recommended that Members note the Draft Statement of Accounts for 2016/17. 
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

8. Regulation 9(1) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requires the Authority’s 
Chief Finance Officer to sign and date the statement of accounts, and certify that it 
presents a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority. Regulation 9(2) 
requires the Statement of Accounts to be approved by members prior to publication. 
Regulation 10(1) requires the publication of the approved, audited Statement of 
Accounts by 30 September in 2017 and by 31st July thereafter. 

. 
RISK ASSESSMENT 
 

9. None directly from this report. 
 
CONSULTATION 
 

10. None directly from this report. 
 
 
Garry Cummings 
Chief Finance Officer 
 
Contact Officer: Andy Bryson, Chief Accountant 
Telephone Number 01642 528850 
Email: andy.bryson@stockton.gov.uk 
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Narrative Report













Research, Development, Innovation & Energy: Further enhance productivity in all core sectors

through the commercialisation of knowledge;

Education, Employment & Skills: Ensure a labour market which meets the needs of local business

and supports the lifetime opportunities of all our residents;

Place: Promote the Tees Valley as the preferred location in the UK for energy intensive indigenous

firms and Foreign Direct Investment and create the conditions necessary to attract businesses and

individuals with a focus on vibrant town centres;

Culture: Change the external perceptions of Tees Valley through the arts, cultural and leisure offer,

create places that attract and retain businesses and business leaders, and make the area an attractive

place to live, work and visit; and

Transport & Infrastructure: Facilitate local, regional, national and international road, rail and

broadband connectivity through collaborative investment in physical infrastructure.

Introduction

Welcome to the Tees Valley Combined Authority’s unaudited Annual Statement of Accounts for 2016/17.

The Statement of Accounts contains all the financial statements and disclosure notes required by statute.

The statements have been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting

in the United Kingdom 2016/17. The purpose of this narrative report is to provide a guide to the

Authority’s accounts as well as setting out the Authority’s financial position.

The Tees Valley Combined Authority (TVCA) was established in April 2016 as a new legal body that brings

together the five Authorities which serve Darlington, Hartlepool, Middlesbrough, Redcar and Cleveland and

Stockton, alongside private sector representation from the region’s Local Enterprise Partnership. The TVCA

is responsible for a number of transport functions and economic development and growth across the

combined area.

Balances were transferred from Stockton-on – Tees Borough Authority to the Combined Authority relating

to Tees Valley Unlimited. 2016/17 was a transition year, preparing the organisation to undertake new

responsibilities. A new Managing Director was appointed in July 2016 and a capacity review undertaken to

reflect the increasing levels of responsibilities and funding including the transition to mayoral governance

arrangements.

Strategy and Priorities

The ambition is for Tees Valley to become a high value, low carbon, diverse and inclusive economy. These

aspirations and goals, along with the Combined Authority’s plan for delivering them, are laid down in the

refreshed Strategic Economic Plan (SEP), published in December 2016. Our ambition incorporates

economic, social and environmental priorities and will allow all partners to work towards a sustainable and

socially responsible Tees Valley.

Underlying this ambition is a commitment to improving the lifetime opportunities for local people, tackling

some of the difficult challenges of social exclusion, providing opportunities across all of the Tees Valley

including rural areas and disadvantaged communities, thereby ensuring that all citizens are able to share

in the benefits of economic growth. The SEP is focused around six thematic building blocks which reflect

the main priorities and areas of activities over the next ten years to unlock transformational growth:-

Business Growth: Further increase jobs and business density through targeted support to create and

attract new companies and to grow businesses and sectors with high growth
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Core Running Costs Budget Actual Variance

 £000s £000s £000s

Salary Costs 1,685 1,728 43 

787 822 35 

Total Expenditure 2,472 2,550 78 

(1,055) (1,055) -  

LA Contributions (2,067) (2,067) -  

Bank Interest -  (96) (96)

Total Income ( 3,122) ( 3,218) ( 96)

General Fund Balance @ 31/03/17 (650) (668) (18)

Other Non Staffing Expenditure

Cash Flow Statement - This statement provides a summary of the flow of cash into and out of the

Combined Authority for revenue and capital purposes.

Notes to the Financial Statements - These include the accounting policies and concepts applied, as well

as the disclosure notes relating to the above statements.

Key Sections Included in the Statement of Accounts

Statement of Responsibilities - This sets out the respective responsibilities of the Combined Authority

and the Chief Financial Officer for the Accounts.

Movement in Reserves Statement - This statement shows the movement during the year of the

different reserves held by the Combined Authority.

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement - This account summarises the revenue costs of

providing all services and the income and resources received in financing the expenditure.

Balance Sheet - The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and

liabilities recognised by the Authority. The net assets of the Authority (assets less liabilities) are matched

by the reserves held by the Authority.

Our financial position  at the end of the financial year on core running costs is shown in the following table:

Financial Position As At 31 March 2017

Core Running Costs

Opening Balances Transferred to TVCA

The variance relates to external audit fees and transitional arrangements which have been funded from the

generation of investment interest. The General Fund balance at year end was £0.668m. This includes £18k

which was agreed to fund outstanding Due Diligence costs leaving an uncommitted balance of £0.650m, in

line with that planned.

A set of indicative activities and output targets is identified within the Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) for

the six priorities as well as an assessment of overall impact.

Page 3



Tees Valley Combined Authority - Annual Financial Statements 2016/17

Narrative Report

Resource Position

Development Fund

Looking Ahead Including Future Funding Changes & Risks

Our investment in Tees Valley in 2016-17 was £44.2 million spent as detailed in the following table.

In October 2015, we suffered the devastating loss of the SSI Redcar Steelworks, with the direct loss of

3,000 jobs, and many more affected in the wider supply chain. The SSI Task Force was established to

offer help and support to those affected by the closure. The Task Force worked with government to put in

place local packages of investment of which £13.305m was expended in 2016/17 to support both

individuals and business affected by the closure and also to provide longer term wider economic benefits

to the area.

Of the Task Force funding received to date there remains a balance of £29.204m at 31 March 2017 to

provide continued economic support for those impacted by the closure.

There is £1.1m of net slippage compared to the expected position in 2016/17 which is as a result of

spending being reprofiled into future years. In particular match funding for the ESF Youth Employment

Initiatives, Apprenticeship Grant for Employers and expanding superfast broadband programmes of £3.5m

has been offset by accelerated spending on the Local Growth Fund of £2.5m. Overall, spending is on track

as part of the multi-year programme. The position will be further considered as part of the Investment

Plan Review due to be considered by Cabinet at its September meeting

The Development Fund was created to provide upfront investment in feasibility work to ensure that when

proposals come forward under the Strategic Economic Plan priorities they are sufficiently developed for

decision making and to allocate funding. The balance on the Development Fund at 31 March 2017 is

£3.315m, of which £1.496m is uncommitted.

Following detailed negotiations between the Tees Valley Local Authorities and Government, a devolution

deal worth £450 million over 30 years was signed in October 2015. Equivalent to an additional £15 million

per year, the deal also provides for the transfer of significant powers for employment and skills, transport

and investment from Central Government to the Tees Valley. A new fund (the Single Pot) has been created

to deliver a programme of investment in the region over the 30 year period. As part of the devolution deal

a new Tees Valley Mayor has been elected in May 2017 to chair the Combined Authority and drive forward

our ambitious plans.

Task Force Funding

 Budget Actual Variance 
 £000 £000 £000 
    

Total Devolved Spend 24,437 23,399 (1,038) 
Other Spend 20,945 20,827 (118) 

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 45,382 44,226 (1,156) 

    

Funded by:-    

Devolved Funding (24,437) (23,399) 1,038  
Specific Grants (20,945) (20,827) 118  

TOTAL FUNDING (45,382) (44,226) 1,156  
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The Tees Valley Business Compass Service expanded on the existing Growth Hub arrangement during the

latter part of 2016/17 and is being delivered by a third party under contract to the Combined Authority.

The programme aims to support 1,025 SME’s growth opportunities. The total amount of European

funding available until the end of 2019 is £12.97m. This will also lever in co-investment from grant

recipients of £19.2m.

The Chancellor announced in the 2016 Autumn Statement that Mayoral Combined Authorities would be

given the power to borrow to fund investment. Borrowing is expected to be subject to the “Prudential

Code” which applies to all local authority borrowing. The powers which are expected to be in place during

the latter part of next financial year and will be reflected in an updated Treasury Management Strategy to

be agreed by Cabinet. Borrowing will be subject to a sound business case and provide opportunities to

boost and bring forward investment enhancing the impact on the economic growth of the Tees Valley. The

Combined Authority will only be able to borrow where we are able to generate a return from investment,

or can assign future funding to fully fund the borrowing costs.

Brexit will have profound implications for the UK, and for the Tees Valley specifically. As one of a small

number of areas which qualify for an enhanced level of access to European Funding, the resources

available for investment in our economy are at particular risk. But there are also opportunities to develop

new methods of funding, which could mean that Brexit actually improves the impact of regional economic

development funding for areas such as ours. The outcome depends on the Brexit negotiations, and the

choices that the government makes about how local economic development should be supported in this

new environment.

The Tees Valley Combined Authority’s first Investment Plan was published and agreed in March 2017.

Investment will adhere to the single pot assurance framework agreed with government to ensure we are

open and accountable for our decisions. It will be reviewed again in Autumn 2017. This revision will take

into account progress over the next 6 months, including opportunities for further devolution and the

development of our Sector Action Plans. The review will also be the first opportunity to reflect the priorities

and manifesto of the incoming Mayor. 

The South Tees area is a complex site which needs careful oversight. It was therefore agreed with

government in the devolution deal that the South Tees area would benefit from the first Mayoral

Development Corporation outside London, to be established by the Combined Authority under new legal

powers. The SSI-owned sites themselves create particular challenges. The government has made a formal

commitment that no responsibilities will be transferred locally without appropriate and specific funding and

has initially provided resources to ensure the safe management of the site. The Combined Authority will

continue to work closely with the government to ensure liabilities and risks are managed effectively.

Non Financial Performance 

Key performance measures are as follows:-

• Apprenticeship Grant for Employers (AGE) - following the devolution of AGE Grant funding effective from

August 2016 from central Government the Combined Authority has supported training for 765 apprentices.

• Careers and Enterprise Company Activity - the Enterprise Adviser Network programme has signed up 46

schools/ colleges already exceeding the target of 44 by August 2017, engaging with 7,242 Tees Valley

young people aged 12-18 years old.
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Further Information

Further information about our finances is available from the Combined Authority’s website,

https://teesvalley-ca.gov.uk or from the Chief Financial Officer, Tees Valley Combined Authority,

Cavendish House, Teesdale Business Park, Stockton-on-Tees, Tees Valley, TS17 6QY.  

• SSI Schemes – individuals have been supported in addition to those businesses covered under Business

Compass below:-

 - Jobs & Skills -  363 jobs created

- Retraining and removing barriers to employment - supported 2,061 former SSI and affected supply

chain employees.

- Enabled 51 former SSI apprentices to complete their apprenticeships with other employers.

- Created 269 new business start ups by affected former employees.

Borrowing and Lending Arrangements

During 2016/17, the Combined Authority had no powers to borrow for investment and therefore has no

loans.

The majority of the Authority’s surplus cash is invested in short-term bank deposits, and money market

funds. At the end of the financial year the Authority held investments totalling £77m. The average rate of

return on investments was 0.23% and this has generated £180k in interest in the year.

                                                              

The Authority has invested substantial sums of money and is therefore exposed to financial risks including

the loss of invested funds and the revenue effect of changing interest rates. The successful identification,

monitoring and control of risk are therefore central to the Authority’s treasury management strategy. 

In terms of investment strategy, given the increasing risk and falling returns from short-term unsecured

bank investments, the Authority aims to diversify into more secure and/or higher yielding asset classes

during 2017/18.

Retirement Benefits (IAS 19)

The Authority is required to comply with the accounting principles as required by International Accounting

Standard 19 (IAS19). This requires the cost of retirement benefits to be recognised in the Financial

Statements when employees earn them, rather than when the benefits are actually paid as pensions.

Disclosure requirements include figures for the Net Pension Asset/Liability and the Pension Reserve in the

Balance Sheet. There are also entries in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and

Movement In Reserves Statement to reflect movements in the Net Pension Asset/Liability from one year to

the next. Entries are also required to reconcile back to actual pension contributions payable for Authority

tax purposes.

AON Hewitt, an independent firm of actuaries, has calculated the Authority’s net liability position as

£1.714m on the Local Government Pension Scheme as at 31st March 2017. Employer’s contributions to

the pension fund during 2016/17 were charged at 19.8% of total pensionable employee pay in line with

actuarial advice. Further information on retirement benefits is available in Note 21 of the Notes to the Core

Financial Statements. 

• Business Compass – During the year the Growth Hub worked with over 750 companies to secure over

£8.8m of new investment (including £6.1m of private sector match funding) which created over 300 new

jobs and safeguarded 87 jobs. The increased European Funding has facilitated increased delivery capacity

moving from 3 FTE advisor posts to 5 FTE in year (further increasing to 10 during 2017/18)
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Movement in Reserves Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017
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£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Movement in reserves during 2016/17

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 87,149 -  -  87,149 (1,723) 85,426 

Adjustments between accounting basis & funding basis 

under regulations (Note 5)
(40,403) -  40,570 167 (167) -  

Increase/Decrease in Year 46,746 -  40,570 87,316 (1,890) 85,426 

Balance at 31 March 2017 carried forward 46,746 -  40,570 87,316 (1,890) 85,426 

General Fund analysed over:

Amounts earmarked (Note 6) 46,078 

Amounts uncommitted 668 

Total General Fund Balance 

at 31 March 2017
46,746

This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Authority, analysed into

‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure) and other reserves. The Surplus or (Deficit)

on the Provision of Services line shows the true economic cost of providing the Authority’s services, more details of

which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
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Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

for the year ended 31 March 2017

2016/17

£000s £000s £000s

Expenditure Income Net

Business Growth 6,108 (14,129) (8,021)

Research Development Innovation & Energy 1,631 (5,612) (3,981)

Education Employment & Skills 4,558 (6,885) (2,327)

Culture 25 -  25 

Transport 20,602 (21,290) (688)

Enabling Infrastructure 58 (6,679) (6,621)

Project Development 1,258 (1,258) -  

Schemes Not in the Investment Plan 26,074 (35,291) (9,217)

Core Running Costs 3,448 (18,601) (15,153)

Cost Of Services 63,762 (109,745) (45,983)

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset 160 (130) 30 

Interest receivable and similar income (253) (253)

Non-ringfenced government grants -  (373) (373)

Capital grants and contributions -  (40,570) (40,570)

(Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services (87,149)

Re-measurements of the defined benefit liability 1,723 

Other (gains) and losses -  

Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 1,723 

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (85,426)

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure:

Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income:

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) shows the economic cost in the year of providing services in

accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. 
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Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2017

31 March 2017

£000s
Non-current assets

Long Term Debtors 5,013 

Total non-current assets 5,013 

Current assets

Short term investments 48,056 

Debtors 10 5,966 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 30,002 

Total current assets 84,024 

Current liabilities

Short Term Creditors 12 (1,897)

Total current liabilities (1,897)

Long term liabilities

Long Term Creditors -  

Other Long Term Liabilities 13 & 20 (1,714)

Total long term liabilities (1,714)

Net Assets: 85,426 

Reserves  

Usable reserves:

General Fund Balance 1 668 

Earmarked General Fund Reserves 6 46,078 

Capital Grants Unapplied 40,570 

87,316 

Unusable Reserves:

Pensions Reserve 13 & 20 (1,714)

Accumulated Absences Account 5 (176)

(1,890)

Total Reserves: 85,426 

N
o

te

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by the Authority. The net

assets of the Authority (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the Authority. Reserves are reported in two

categories. The first category of reserves are usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that the Authority may use to provide services,

subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use. The second category of

reserves are those that the Authority is not able to use to provide services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold

unrealised gains and losses and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line

“Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations”. 
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Cash Flow Statement For The Year Ended 31 March 2017

2016/17

£000s

Net (surplus) or deficit on the provision of services (87,149)

Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for non-

cash movements:

Pension Fund adjustments 9 

Increase/(Decrease) in Revenue Debtors 10 5,966 

(Increase)/Decrease in Revenue Creditors 12 (1,897)

Increase/(Decrease) in Long Term Debtors 5,013 

9,091 

Adjustments for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the 

provision of services that are investing and financing activities:

Capital Grants credited to surplus or deficit on the provision of services 40,570 

40,570 

Net cashflow from operating activities (37,488)

Investing activities

Purchase of short term and long term investments 48,056 

Other receipts from investing activities (40,570)

Net cashflow from investing activities 7,486 

Net (increase) or decrease in cash and cash equivalents (30,002)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period -  

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period 11 (30,002)

The cashflow for operating activities includes the following items:

Interest received (191)

Interest paid -  

N
o

te

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Authority during the reporting period. The

statement shows how the Authority generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing

and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the

operations of the Authority are funded by way contributions and grant income or from the recipients of services provided by the

Authority. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended to

contribute to the Authority’s future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on

future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Authority.
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2016/17

Net 

Expenditure

Chargeable 

to the 

General

Fund

Adjustments

between the

Funding and

Accounting

Basis

Net Expenditure

in the 

Comprehensive

Income and

Expenditure

Statement

£000s £000s £000s

Business Growth 43 (8,064) (8,021)

Research Development Innovation & Energy 45 (4,026) (3,981)

Education Employment & Skills 21 (2,348) (2,327)

Culture 24 1 25 

Transport 30 (718) (688)

Enabling Infrastructure -  (6,621) (6,621)

Project Development -  -  -  

Schemes Not in the Investment Plan 72 (9,289) (9,217)

Core Running Costs (277) (14,876) (15,153)

Net Cost Of Services (42) (45,941) (45,983)

Other Income and Expenditure (626) (40,540) (41,166)

Surplus or Deficit (668) (86,481) (87,149)

Opening General Fund Balance -  

Less/Plus Surplus or (Deficit) 668 

Closing General Fund Balance 
at 31 March 668 

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources

by the Combined Authority in comparison with those resources consumed or earned by the authority in

accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. It also shows how this expenditure is allocated

for decision making purposes between the Authority’s directorates/services/departments. Income and

expenditure accounted for under generally accepted accounting practices is presented more fully in the

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Note 1: Expenditure & Funding Analysis
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Note 1: Expenditure & Funding Analysis

Notes to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis:

Adjustments 

for Capital 

Purposes

Net change

for the 

Pensions

Adjustments

Other

Differences

Total

Adjustments

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Business Growth -  (2) (8,062) (8,064)

Research Development Innovation & Energy -  -  (4,026) (4,026)

Education Employment & Skills -  (1) (2,347) (2,348)

Culture -  (1) 2 1 

Transport -  -  (718) (718)

Enabling Infrastructure -  -  (6,621) (6,621)

Project Development -  -  -  -  

SSI Tsk Force Funding -  (2) (9,287) (9,289)

Core Running Costs -  (33) (14,843) (14,876)

Net Cost Of Services -  (39) (45,902) (45,941)

(40,570) 30 -  (40,540)

(40,570) (9) (45,902) (86,481)

For Financing and investment income and expenditure the other differences column recognises adjustments to

the General Fund for the timing differences for premiums and discounts. 

Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure – capital grants are adjusted for income not

chargeable under generally accepted accounting practices. Revenue grants are adjusted from those receivable in the

year to those receivable without conditions or for which conditions were satisfied throughout the year. The Taxation

and Non Specific Grant Income and Expenditure line is credited with capital grants receivable in the year without

conditions or for which conditions were satisfied in the year.

Net Change for the Pensions Adjustments: this is the net change for the removal of pension

contributions and the addition of IAS 19 Employee Benefits pension related expenditure and income: 

For service s this represents the removal of the employer pension contributions made by the authority as allowed by

statute and the replacement with current service costs and past service costs. 

For Financing and investment income and expenditure – the net interest on the defined benefit liability is

charged to the CIES. 

Other Differences between amounts debited/credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Statement and amounts payable/receivable to be recognised under statute: 

Adjustments for capital purposes: this column adds in depreciation and impairment and revaluation

gains and losses in the services line, and for:

Other operating expenditure – adjusts for capital disposals with a transfer of income on disposal of assets and the

amounts written off for those assets.

Financing and investment income and expenditure – the statutory charges for capital financing ie Minimum

Revenue Provision and other revenue contributions are deducted from other income and expenditure as these are not

chargeable under generally accepted accounting practices.

Other Income and Expenditure from the Expenditure and 

Funding Analysis

Difference between General Fund Surplus or Deficit 

and Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services

Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis 2016/17

Adjustments from General Fund to arrive at the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

Amounts
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•

•

•

The Authority does not anticipate that the above amendments will have a material impact on the information

provided in the financial statements in that there is unlikely to be a change to the reported information in the

reported net cost of services or the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services. 

The items in the Authority’s Balance Sheet at 31 March 2017 for which there is a significant risk of material

adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows: 

Note 4: Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation 

Uncertainty

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the Authority about

the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into account historical experience, current

trends and other relevant factors. However, because balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual results

could be materially different from the assumptions and estimates.

Pension liabilities: estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex judgements

relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are projected to increase, changes in retirement ages,

mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund assets. A firm of consulting actuaries is engaged to provide

the Authority with expert advice about the assumptions to be applied. Sensitivities are included in Note 20.

As far as Value Added Tax is concerned the Government’s usual intention is to ensure that the Combined Authority

like other local authorities should not bear any additional costs from VAT and that HMRC would not incur costs or

make savings as a result of the policy. The policy would have no impact for the Exchequer. However, powers under

Section 33 of the VAT Act 1994 were not put in place by the Department for Communities and Local Government or

HM Treasury to enable the Combined Authority to fall under these arrangements until 7 November 2016. As a

consequence £610k of unrecoverable VAT has been charged against service accounts for the period 1 April to 6

November 2016. Discussions are on-going with DCLG and Treasury regarding this position

Note 2: Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued But Have Not Yet Been Adopted 

The 2016/17 Code of Practice includes amendments to the following accounting standards that have not been

adopted within this Statement of Accounts:

Note 3: Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

In applying it's accounting policies the Authority has had to make certain judgements about complex transactions or

those involving uncertainty about future events. The critical judgements made in the Statement of Accounts are: 

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

Page 13



Tees Valley Combined Authority - Annual Financial Statements 2016/17

2016/17
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£000s £000s £000s £000s

Adjustments involving the Capital Adjustment Account (see note 7) -  -  

Adjustments involving the Capital Grants Unapplied Account (40,570) 40,570 -  

Adjustments involving the Pensions Reserve (9) (9)

Adjustments involving the Accumulated Absences Adjustment Account 176 176 

Total Adjustments (40,403) -  40,570 167 

Note 5: Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations
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Note 6: Movements in Earmarked Reserves
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£000s £000s £000s £000s

Revenue Reserves

Development Pot -  141 (2,300) (2,159)

Investment Fund -  6,063 (27,650) (21,587)

SSI -  10,306 (32,638) (22,332)

Total Revenue Reserves -  16,510 (62,588) (46,078)

This note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund balances in earmarked reserves 

to provide financing for future expenditure plans and the amounts posted back from earmarked

reserves to meet General Fund expenditure in 2016/17. 

Earmarked Reserves
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Note 7: Capital Adjustment Account

£000s £000s

Balance at 1 April -  

 Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 28,339 

28,339 

Capital financing applied in the year:


Capital grants and contributions credited to the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement that have been applied to capital financing
(28,339)

(28,339)

Balance at 31 March -  

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting

for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the acquisition, construction or enhancement of those

assets under statutory provisions. The account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as

depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Statement (with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to convert fair value figures to a historical cost

basis). The account is credited with the amounts set aside by the Council as finance for the costs of acquisition,

construction and enhancement. 

Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or credited to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

2016/17
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Note 8: Members' Allowances

Note 9: Employee remuneration

Remuneration Summary

Salary Range

  £50,001 - £55,000£50,001 - £55,000

  £55,001 - £60,000£55,001 - £60,000

  £60,001 - £65,000£60,001 - £65,000

  £65,001 - £70,000£65,001 - £70,000

  £70,001 - £75,000£70,001 - £75,000

  £75,001 - £80,000£75,001 - £80,000

  £80,001 - £85,000£80,001 - £85,000

  £85,001 - £90,000£85,001 - £90,000

  £90,001 - £95,000£90,001 - £95,000

£95,001 - £100,000

Post holder information                                                                                                           
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£ £ £ £ £ £ £

Managing Director 100,161 559 -  100,720 8,694 109,414 -  

Strategy Director 91,932 651 -  92,583 18,202 110,785 -  

Investment Director 21,619 158 -  21,777 4,280 26,057 -  

Business Director 91,932 964 -  92,896 18,202 111,098 -  

Head of Skills Education & 

Employment
17,078 -  -  17,078 3,381 20,459 -  

Head of Culture & Tourism 16,993 -  -  16,993 3,620 20,613 -  

Head of Transport 5,827 -  -  5,827 1,154 6,981 -  

31,142 -  -  31,142 6,166 37,308 -  

376,684 2,332 -  379,016 63,699 442,715 -  

The Chief Finance Officer and Monitoring Officer are both employees of Stockton On Tees Borough Council and do not

receive any direct remuneration from TVCA for this role.

Details of the amounts paid to each elected member of the Authority are published annually. Elected members from

the constituent local authorities sit on various TVCA boards and the no payments were made to these members

during 2016/17. 

2016/17 2015/16

AuthorityAuthority

The number of employees whose taxable remuneration, including benefits, redundancy and other severance

payments, exceeded £50,000 is shown below, in bands of £5,000:

Number of Employees

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

Only three of the senior employee posts have been in employment of the organisation for the full financial year.

These being the Managing Director, Strategy Director and Business Director. All other employees commenced

employment at various stages of the year.

Head of Homes & Communities

Remuneration of Senior Employees 

Remuneration of the Managing Director and his senior staff has been excluded above. Details are shown in the

following table.

- - 
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Note 10: Debtors
31 March 2017

£000s

Central Government 1,372 

Local Government 4,500 

Other entities and individuals 94 

5,966 

Note 11: Cash and Cash Equivalents
31 March 2017

£000s

Bank and Imprests 2,996 

Cash Equivalents 27,006 

30,002 

Note 12: Short Term Creditors
31 March 2017

£000s

Central Government (59)

Local Government (1,474)

Other entities and individuals (364)

(1,897)

Note 13: Other Long Term Liabilities
31 March 2017

£000s

Net pensions liability (1,714)

(1,714)
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Note 14: Related Party Transactions

Central Government

Members

TVCA Constituent Authorities

2016/17
Income 

Received
Expenditure

£000s £000s

Stockton On Tees Borough Council 4,832 4,844 

Middlesbrough Borough Council 4,590 6,994 

Redcar & Cleveland Borough Council 4,895 3,235 

Hartlepool Borough Council 2,582 2,941 

Darlington Borough Council 3,431 3,808 

Total 20,330 21,822 

The Authority is required to disclose material transactions with related parties – bodies or individuals

that have the potential to control or influence the Authority or to be controlled or influenced by the

Authority. Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the Authority

might have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or might have secured the ability to

limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the Authority. 

Central government has effective control over the general operations of the Authority – it is responsible

for providing the statutory framework within which the Authority operates, provides the majority of its

funding in the form of grants and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that the Authority

has with other parties. Grants received from government departments are set out in the subjective

analysis in Note 18. 

Members of the Authority have direct control over the Authority’s financial and operating policies. The

total of members’ allowances paid in 2016/17 is shown in Note 8. During 2016/17, there were no

related part transactions between Authority members and TVCA.

No elected member or senior officer of the authority sit on any board or management committee of any

entities which are significantly controlled or influneced by the authority.

The Leaders and Elected Mayor of the five TVCA constituent Authorities serve as members of the TVCA

Leadership Board. Details of income and expenditure with the five Authorities are set out in the table

below. 

Entities Controlled or Significantly Influenced by the Authority
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Note 15: External Audit Costs

2016/17

£000s

30 

-  

-  

30 

The Authority has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the Statement of Accounts, certification of

grant claims and to non-audit services provided by the Authority’s external auditors:

Fees payable to Mazars LLP with regard to external audit services

Fees payable to Mazars LLP for the certification of grant claims 

Fees payable in respect of other services provided by Mazars LLP
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Note 16: Leases

Operating leases: Authority as lessee

Future minimum lease payments due 2016/17

£000s

Not later than one year 134 

Later than one year & not later than five years 608 

Later than five years 722 

1,464 

From the 1st January 2017 the Authority took on the lease of the third floor of Cavendish House. The new lease is

for a term of 10 years. The minimum lease payments due in future years are:
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Note 17: Capital Expenditure and Financing

31 March 2017

£000s

Opening Capital Financing Requirement -  

Capital investment

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 28,339 

Sources of Finance
Government grants and other contributions (28,339)

Closing Capital Financing Requirement -  

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below together with the resources

that have been used to finance it. Where capital expenditure is to be financed in future years by charges to revenue

as assets are used by the Authority, the expenditure results in an increase in the Capital Financing Requirement

(CFR), a measure of the capital expenditure incurred historically by the Authority that has yet to be financed. The

CFR is analysed in the bottom part of this note. 
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Note 18: Grant Income

2016/17

£000s

Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income

Local Growth Fund 28,479 

SSI 6,872 

Growing Places 4,063 

Lep Core 368 

Development Pot 1,156 

Other Grants 5 

Total 40,943 

Credited to Services

Local Growth Fund 246 

SSI 10,307 

Lep Core 1,089 

ERDF Business Compass 339 

AGE 982 

DECC - City Deal / Carbon 480 

ERDF / ESF Technical Assistance 55 

Other Grants 58 

Total 13,556 

The Authority credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the Comprehensive Income and

Expenditure Statement in 2016/17. 
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Note 19: Financial Instruments

Categories of Financial Instruments

The following categories of financial instrument are carried in the Balance Sheet:

31 March 2017 31 March 2017

£000s £000s

Loans and receivables 5,013 77,062 

-  5,812 

Total financial assets 5,013 82,874 

(1,721)

Total financial liabilities (1,721)

        

        

The fair value of trade and other receivables is taken to be the invoiced or billed amount.

Mark to Model Valuation for Financial Instruments  

Loans and receivables

Carrying Fair

Amount Value

£000s £000s

Money Market Loans < 1 year 50,056 50,056 

Other Loans >1 year 5,013 5,013 

Cash on Deposit 27,006 27,006 

Customers 5,812 5,812 

Total loans and receivables 87,887 87,887 

Financial liabilities and financial assets represented by loans and receivables and long term debtors and creditors are

carried on the balance sheet at amortised cost. Their fair value can be assessed by calculating the present value of

the cash flows that take place over the remaining life of the instruments, using the following assumptions:

Available for sale assets and assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the Balance Sheet

at their fair value. These fair values are based on public price quotations where there is an active market for the

instrument. The exceptions to this treatment are short term debtors and creditors are carried at cost as this is a fair

approximation of their value. 

No early repayment or impairment is recognised;

Where an instrument has a maturity of less than 12 months or is a trade or other receivable the fair value is

taken to be the carrying amount or the billed amount.

Long Term Current

31 March 2017

As at 31st March the Authority held £87.9m financial assets and had no financial liabilities. All the financial assets are

classed as Loans and Receivables and held with Notice Accounts. To provide a fair value which provides a comparison

to the carrying amount, we have used a financial model valuation provided by Arlingclose our Treasury Managment

Advisors. This valuation applies the Net Present Value approach, which provides an estimate of the value of

payments in the future in today's terms as at the balance sheet date. This is a widely accepted valuation technique

commonly used by the private sector. 

Financial assets carried at contract amounts

Financial liabilities carried at contract amount

Fair Values of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities that are not measured at Fair Value (but for 

which Fair Value disclosures are required)
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Note 19: Financial Instruments

Key risks

The Authority’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks; the key risks are:

        

        

        

        

Overall procedures for managing risks

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        by approving an investment strategy for the forthcoming year setting out its criteria for both investing and

selecting investment counterparties in compliance with Government guidance.

These are required to be reported and approved at or before the the start of the year to which they relate. These

items are reported with the annual treasury management strategy which outlines the detailed approach to managing

risk in relation to the Authority's financial instrument exposure. Actual performance is also reported after each year

and regular updates are provided to the Audit Committee.

liquidity risk – the possibility that the Authority might not have funds available to meet its commitments to make

payments

re-financing risk – the possibility that the Authority might be requiring to renew a financial instrument on

maturity at disadvantageous interest rates or terms

Its maximum and minimum exposures to the maturity structure of its debt;

Its maximum annual exposures to investments maturing beyond a year.

The Authority's overall borrowing;

market risk – the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Authority as a result of changes in such

measures as interest rates and stock market movements

The Authority’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its investments in banks and building societies of

£21,000 cannot be assessed generally as the risk of any institution failing to make interest payments or repay the

principal sum will be specific to each individual institution. Recent experience has shown that it is rare for such

entities to be unable to meet their commitments. A risk of irrecoverability applies to all of the Authority’s deposits,

but there was no evidence at the 31 March 2016 that this was likely to crystallise. 

The following analysis summarises the Authority’s potential maximum exposure to credit risk on other financial

assets, based on experience of default and uncollectability over the last five financial years, adjusted to reflect

current market conditions. 

Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to the Authority’s

customers. This risk is minimised through the Annual Investment Strategy, which requires that deposits are not

made with financial institutions unless they meet identified minimum credit criteria, in accordance with the Fitch,

Moody's and Standard & Poors Credit Ratings Services. 

The Annual Investment Strategy also considers maximum amounts and time limits in respect of each financial

institution. Deposits are not made with banks and financial institutions unless they meet the minimum requirements

of the investment criteria outlined above. Additional selection criteria are also applied after this initial criteria is

applied.  Details of the Investment Strategy can be found on the Authority's website.

Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments

credit risk – the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the Authority

The Authority's overall risk management procedures focus on the unpredictability of financial markets, and are

structured to implement suitable controls to minimise these risks. The procedures for risk management are set out

through a legal framework based on the Local Government Act 2003 and associated regulations. These require the

Authority to comply with the CIPFA Prudential Code, the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management in the

Public Services and investment guidance issued through the Act. Overall, these procedures require the Authority to

manage risk in the following ways:

by formally adopting the requirements of the CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice;

by the adoption of a Treasury Policy Statement and treasury management clauses within its financial

regulations/standing orders/constitution;

by approving annually in advance prudential and treasury indicators for the following three years limiting:

Its maximum and minimum exposures to fixed and variable rates;
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Note 19: Financial Instruments

               

Amount at     

31 March 2017

Historical 

experience of 

default 

Adjustment for 

market 

conditions at 

31 March 2017

£000s % % £000s

AA rated counterparties -  0.03% 0.03% -  

A rated counterparties 35,000 0.06% 0.06% 21 

B rated counterparties 0 0.18% 0.18% -  

Local Authorities 15,000 0.00% 0.00% -  

Debtors 5,812 0.00% 0.00% -  

21 

•

        

        

2016/17

£000s

Increase in interest receivable on variable rate investments 301 

Impact on (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services 301 

If all interest rates had been 1% higher with all other variables held constant, the financial effect would be:

investments at fixed rates – the fair value of the assets will fall (no impact on revenue balances)

Refinancing and Maturity risk

The Authority maintains a significant investment portfolio. Whilst the cash flow procedures above are considered

against the refinancing risk procedures, longer term risk to the Authority relates to managing the exposure to

replacing financial instruments as they mature. The approved treasury indicator limits placed on investments are

the key parameters used to address this risk. The Authority approved treasury and investment strategies address

the main risks and the central treasury team address the operational risks within the approved parameters. This

includes:

monitoring the maturity profile of investments to ensure sufficient liquidity is available for the Authority's day to

day cash flow needs, and the spread of longer term investments provide stability of maturities and returns in

relation to the longer term cash flow needs.

The Authority has a number of strategies for managing interest rate risk. The Annual Treasury Management

Strategy draws together Authority's prudential and treasury indicators and its expected treasury operations,

including an expectation of interest rate movements. From this strategy a treasury indicator is set which provides

maximum limits for fixed and variable interest rate exposure. The central treasury team will monitor market and

forecast interest rates within the year to adjust exposures appropriately. For instance during periods of falling

interest rates, and where economic circumstances make it favourable, fixed rate investments may be taken for

longer periods to secure better long term returns.

investments at variable rates – the interest income credited to the (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of

Services will rise

Market Risk

Interest Rate Risk: The Authority is exposed to interest rate movements on its investments. Movements in

interest rates have a complex impact on the Authority, depending upon how variable and fixed interest rates move

across differing financial instrument periods. For instance, a rise in variable and fixed interest rates would have the

following effects:

No breaches of the Authority's counterparty criteria occurred during the reporting period and the Authority does not

expect any losses from non performance by any of its counterparties in relation to deposits.

Liquidity Risk

The Authority manages its liquidity position through the risk management procedures above (the setting and

approval of prudential indicators and the approval of the treasury and investment strategy reports), as well as

through a comprehensive cash flow management system, as required by the CIPFA Code of Practice. This seeks to

ensure that cash is available when needed.

The Authority is required to provide a balanced budget through the Local Government Finance Act 1992, which

ensures sufficient monies are raised to cover annual expenditure. There is therefore no significant risk that it will be

unable to raise finance to meet its commitments under financial instruments.  

As at 31 March 2016, all of the Authority's deposits were due to mature within 364 days.

Estimated maximum 

exposure to default 

at 31 March 2017
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Note 19: Financial Instruments

Foreign Exchange Risk: The Authority has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and

therefore has no exposure to loss arising from movements in exchange rates.

Price Risk:  The Authority, excluding the pension fund, does not invest in equity shares or marketable bonds.

The approximate impact of a 1% fall in interest rates would be as above but with the movements being

reversed.

Page 27



Tees Valley Combined Authority - Annual Financial Statements 2016/17

Note 20: Defined Benefit Pension Schemes

Participation in Pension Schemes

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Authority makes contributions towards the cost

of post employment benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire, the Authority

has a commitment to make the payments that needs to be disclosed at the time that employees earn their future

entitlement.

The Authority participates in The Local Government Pension Scheme, administered locally by Middlesbrough Council –

this is a funded defined benefit final salary scheme, meaning that the Authority and employees pay contributions into

a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pensions liabilities with investment assets.

Transactions Relating to Post-employment Benefits

We recognise the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of services when they are earned by employees,

rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge we are required to make against

Authority resources is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of post employment/retirement benefits

is reversed out of the General Fund via the Movement in Reserves Statement. The following transactions have been

made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the General Fund Balance via the Movement in

Reserves Statement during the year:
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Note 20: Defined Benefit Pension Schemes

2016/17

£000s

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Cost of Services:

        Current service cost 366 

        Past service cost -  

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

Net interest cost 30 

396 

        
Return on plan assets (excluding the amount included in the net 

interest expense)
(787)

        
Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in financial 

assumptions
1,434 

        Actuarial gains and losses due to liability experience -  

        Actuarial gains and losses due to acquisitions -  

647 

Movement in Reserves Statement

        

Reversal of net charges made to the (Surplus) or Deficit for the 

Provision of Services for post employment benefits in accordance 

with the Code

(396)

        Employers’ contributions payable to scheme 405 

        Retirement benefits payable to pensioners 12 

Pension Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet

2016/17

£000s

Present value of defined benefit obligation (6,715)

Fair value of plan assets 5,001 

Net liability recognised in the Balance Sheet (1,714)

Other Post Employment Benefit Charged to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the (Surplus) or 

Deficit on the Provision of Services

Local Government

 Pension Scheme

The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the authority’s obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans

is as follows:

Actual amount charged against the General Fund Balance for 

pensions in the year:

Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

Local Government

Pension Scheme
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Note 20: Defined Benefit Pension Schemes

Reconciliation of the Movements in the Fair Value of Scheme (Plan) Assets

2016/17

£000s

Opening fair value of scheme assets 3,578 

Interest income 130 

Remeasurement gains and (losses) 787 

Contributions from the employer 405 

Contributions from employees into the scheme 113 

Net increase from acquisitions -  

Benefits paid (12)

Closing balance at 31 March 5,001 

Reconciliation Of Present Value Of The Scheme Liabilities (Defined Benefit Obligation)

2016/17

£000s

Opening balance at 1 April 4,654 

Current service cost 366 

Interest cost 160 

Contributions by scheme participants 113 

Actuarial gains and losses - financial assumptions 1,434 

Actuarial gains and losses - liability experience -  

Benefits paid (12)

Net increase from acquisitions -  

Past service cost 0 

Closing balance at 31 March 6,715 

Local Government Pension Scheme assets comprised:

£000s %

Equity investments (Quoted) 4,001 80.0%

Property (Quoted) 345 6.9%

Government Bonds 10 0.2%

Corporate Bonds 10 0.2%

Cash 560 11.2%

Other Investments 75 1.5%

5,001 100%

Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method, an estimate of the

pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels, etc. Both

the Local Government Pension Scheme and discretionary benefits liabilities have been assessed by AON Hewitt, an

independent firm of actuaries; estimates for the Teesside Pension Fund being based on the latest full valuation of the

scheme as at 31 March 2016.

Local Government

Pension Scheme

Fair value of

scheme assets

Local Government

Pension Scheme

2016/17
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Note 20: Defined Benefit Pension Schemes

The principal assumptions used by the actuary have been:

2016/17

Mortality assumptions:

Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:

Men 22.8

Women 24.9

Longevity at 45 for future pensioners:

Men 25.0

Women 27.2

Other assumptions:

Rate of inflation (RPI) 3.1%  

Rate of inflation (CPI) 2.0%  

Rate of increase in salaries 3.0%  

Rate of increase in pensions 2.0%  

Rate of Pension accounts revaluation rate 2.0%

Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 2.6%  

Take-up of option to convert annual pension into retirement lump sum 80.0%  

Impact on the Defined Benefit Obligation in the Scheme

Increase Base Figure Decrease

£000s £000s £000s

Longevity (increase or decrease in 1 year) 6,517 6,715 6,915 

Rate of increase in salaries (increase or decrease by 0.1%) 6,784 6,715 6,647 

Rate of increase in pensions payment (increase or decrease by 0.1%) 6,820 6,715 6,612 

Rate for discounting scheme liabilities (increase or decrease by 0.1%) 6,545 6,715 6,890 

The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set out in the table above.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions

occurring at the end of the reporting period and assumes for each change that the assumption analysed changes

while all the other assumptions remain constant. The assumptions in longevity, for example, assume that life

expectancy increases or decreases for men and women. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of

the assumptions may be interrelated. The estimations in the sensitivity analysis have followed the accounting policies

for the scheme, I.e. on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method. The methods and types of

assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis below did not change from those used in the previous period.

Impact on the Authority’s Cash Flows

The objectives of the scheme are to keep employers’ contributions at as constant a rate as possible. The Authority has

agreed a strategy with the scheme’s actuary to achieve a funding level of 100% over the next 20 years. Funding

levels are monitored on an annual basis. The next triennial valuation is due to be carried out as at 31 March 2019.

The scheme will need to take account of the national changes to the scheme under the Public Pensions Services Act

2013. Under the Act, the Local Government Pension Scheme in England and Wales and the other main existing public

service schemes may not provide benefits in relation to service after 31 March 2014 (or service after 31 March 2015

for other main existing public service pension schemes in England and Wales). The Act provides for scheme

regulations to be made within a common framework, to establish new career average revalued earnings schemes to

pay pensions and other benefits to certain public servants. 

The Authority anticipates to pay £0.257m contributions to the scheme in 2017/2018.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation for scheme members is 25.7 years.
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Number of 

compulsory 

redundancies

Number of 

other 

departures 

agreed

Total number 

of exit 

packages by 

cost band

Total cost of 

exit packages 

in each band

2016/17 2016/17 2016/17 2016/17

£000s

£1 to £20,000 1 -  1 3 

Total 1 -  1 3 

Note 22: Provisions

Note 23: Contingent Liabilities

Note 24: Post Balance Sheet Events

The Authority has no post balance sheet events to report.

The Authority has no contingent liabilities

The Authority has not been required to establish any provision's in year.

Note 21: Termination Benefits

The Authority terminated the contract of one employee in 2016/17, incurring liabilities of £3k. The amount has

been payable to an officer from the Authority reflecting the end of specific grant funding.

The numbers of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of the compulsory and other redundancies

are set out in the table below:

Exit package cost band (including special 

payments)
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Note 25: Statement of Accounting Policies

• Income from the sale of goods is recognised when the Authority transfers the significant risks and rewards of

ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic benefits or service potential associated with the

transaction will flow to the Authority. 

• Income from the provision of services is recognised when the Authority can measure reliably the percentage of

completion of the transaction and it is probable that economic benefits or service potential associated with the

transaction will flow to the Authority. 

• Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there is a gap between the date supplies

are received and their consumption, they are carried as inventories on the balance sheet.  

• Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are recorded as expenditure

when the services are received rather than when payments are made. 

• Interest receivable on investments is accounted for respectively as income on the basis of the effective interest

rate for the relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract.

• Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, a debtor or creditor

for the relevant amount is recorded in the balance sheet. Where debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is

written down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be collected.  

General Principles

The Statement of Accounts summarise the Authority’s transactions for the 2016/17 financial year and its position at

the year-end of 31 March 2017. The Authority is required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts by the

Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, which those regulations require to be prepared in accordance with proper

accounting practices. These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the

United Kingdom 2016/17, supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).   

The accounting convention adopted in the financial statements is principally historical cost, modified by the

revaluation of certain categories of non current assets and financial instruments. 

Accruals of Income and Expenditure

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or received. In

particular: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents   

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without penalty on notice of not

more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments that mature in no more than three months or less

from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of

change in value.   

In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on

demand and form an integral part of the Authority’s cash management.  

Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a material error.

Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current and future years affected by the

change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment. 

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the change provides

more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events and conditions on the Authority’s

financial position or financial performance. Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated

otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had

always been applied. 

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening balances and

comparative amounts for the prior period. 

Employee Benefits 

Benefits Payable During Employment 

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year end. They include such

benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave for current employees and are recognised as an

expense for services in the year in which employees render service to the Authority. An accrual is made for the cost

of holiday entitlements (or any form of leave, eg time off in lieu) earned by employees but not taken before the year-

end which employees can carry forward into the next financial year. The accrual is made at the wage and salary rates

applicable in the following accounting year, being the period in which the employee takes the benefit. The accrual is

charged to (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services, but then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves

Statement so that holiday benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence occurs. 
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Note 25: Statement of Accounting Policies

• The Local Government Pensions Scheme, administered by Middlesbrough Authority. 

• The liabilities of the Teesside Pension Fund attributable to the Authority are included in the Balance Sheet on an

actuarial basis using the projected unit method – i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be made in

relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates,

employee turnover rates, etc., and projections of projected earnings for current employees.

• Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate based on the indicative rate of

return on the Aon Hewitt GBP Central AA Curve. 

• The assets of the Teesside Pension Fund attributable to the Authority are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair

value:

quoted securities  – current bid price 

unquoted securities  – professional estimate 

unitised securities – current bid price 

property  – market value. 

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components: 

Service cost comprising:

• current service cost: the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this year – allocated in the

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the services for which the employees worked   

• past service cost : the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment or curtailment whose effect relates

to years of service earned in earlier years – debited to the (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Non Distributed Costs 

• net interest on the net defined benefit liability: i.e. net interest expense for the Authority - the change during the

period in the net defined benefit liability that arises from the passage of time charged to the Financing and

Investment Income and Expenditure line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement - this is

calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the

period to the net defined benefit liability at the beginning of the period - taking into account any changes in the net

defined benefit liability during the period as a result of contribution and benefit payments.

Remeasurements comprising:

• the return on plan assets - excluding amounts included in the net interest on the net defined benefit liability -

charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

• actuarial gains and losses: changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events have not coincided with

assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the actuaries have updated their assumptions –

charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

• cash paid as employer’s contributions to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an

expense.    

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be charged with the

amount payable by the Authority to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not the amount calculated

according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are

appropriations to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits

and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but

unpaid at the year end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial

impact to the General Fund of being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than

as benefits are earned by employees.  

Events after the Reporting Period

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the end

of the reporting period and the date when the Financial Statements are authorised for issue. Two types of events can

be identified: 

Contributions paid to the Teesside Pension Fund:

Post Employment Benefits 

Employees of the Authority are members of one pension scheme: 

The schemes provided defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and pensions), earned as employees

worked for the Authority and its predecessor. 

The Local Government Pension Scheme

The Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme: 
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Note 25: Statement of Accounting Policies

• those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period – the Financial Statements

are adjusted to reflect such events 

• those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period – the Statement of Accounts is not

adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a material effect, disclosure is made in

the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated financial effect. 

• instruments with quoted market prices – the market price 

• other instruments with fixed and determinable payments – discounted cash flow analysis 

• equity shares with no quoted market prices – independent appraisal of company valuations. 

• the Authority will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and 

• the grants or contributions will be received. 

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the financial statements. 

Assets are maintained in the Balance Sheet at fair value. Values are based on the following principles: 

Government Grants and Contributions 

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party contributions and

donations are recognised as due to the Authority when there is reasonable assurance that: 

Amounts recognised as due to the Authority are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that

specify that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or

contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service

potential must be returned to the transferor. 

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried in the Balance

Sheet as receipts in advance. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant

service line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income (non

ringfenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards

incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the lessee. All other leases are

classified as operating leases. 

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered separately for

classification. 

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in return for payment

are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of specific assets. 

Operating Leases 

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as an

expense of the services benefitting from use of the leased property, plant or equipment. Charges are made on a

straight line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a rent-

free period at the commencement of the lease). 

Overheads and Support Services

The costs of overheads and support services are charged to service segments in accordance with the authority's

arrangements for accountability and financial performace.

Financial Assets

Loans and receivables are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Authority becomes a party to the contractual

provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value. They are subsequently measured at their

amortised cost. Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive

Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset in the

Balance Sheet. For most of the loans that the Authority has made, this means that the amount presented in the

Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest credited to the

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement. 
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Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute 

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but that does not result in

the creation of a non current asset has been charged as expenditure to the relevant service in the Comprehensive

Income and Expenditure Statement in the year. Where the Authority has determined to meet the cost of this

expenditure from existing capital resources, a transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the General

Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts charged. 

VAT

VAT on income and expenditure is included only to the extent that it is not recoverable from HM Revenue and

Customs.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a legal or constructive obligation that

probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or service potential, and a reliable estimate can be

made of the amount of the obligation. For instance, the Authority may be involved in a court case that could

eventually result in the making of a settlement or the payment of compensation. 

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Statement in the year that the Authority becomes aware of the obligation, and are measured at the best estimate at

the balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and

uncertainties. 

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance Sheet. Estimated

settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year – where it becomes less than probable that a transfer of

economic benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed

and credited back to the relevant service. 

Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a possible obligation whose

existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the

control of the Authority. A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a possible

asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly

within the control of the Authority. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance

Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts. 

Reserves

The Authority sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover contingencies. Reserves

are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service in that year to

score against the (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Statement. The reserve is then appropriated back into the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves

Statement so that there is no net charge against Authority expenditure. 

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non current assets, financial instruments,

retirement and employee benefits and do not represent usable resources for the Authority.
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        Level 1 - quoted prices

        Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly or indirectly.

        Level 3 - unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Fair Value Measurement

The Authority measures some of its non-financial assets, and some of its financial instruments at fair value at each

reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement assumes

that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The Authority measures the fair value of an asset or liability on the same basis that market participants would use

when pricing the asset or liability (assuming those market participants were acting in their economic best interest).

When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the Authority takes into account a market participant's ability

to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market

participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Authority uses appropriate valuation techniques for each circumstance, maximising the use of relevant known

data and minimising the use of estimates or unknowns. this takes into account the three levels of categories for

inputs to valuations for fair value assets:
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Responsibilities for the Annual Financial Statements

The Authority’s Responsibilities

The Authority is required to:

•      

•      

•      

The Chief Financial Officers Responsibilities

In preparing the Annual Financial Statements, the Chief Financial Officer has:

•      selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;

•      made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;

•      complied with the Local Authority Code of Practice.

The Chief Financial Officer has also:

•      kept accounting records which were up to date;

•      

Certification of the accounts by the Chief Financial Officer

G Cummings CPFA      Date: 30 June 2017

Chief Financial Officer

taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

In accordance with the requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, I certify that by

signing this statement the Annual Financial Statements give a true and fair view of the financial

position of the Authority at the accounting date and its income and expenditure for the year ended 31

March 2017. 

make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that

one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this

Authority, that officer is the Chief Financial Officer;

manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard

its assets; 

approve the Annual Financial Statements by the date specified by the Secretary of State.

The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Authority’s Annual Financial

Statements in accordance with proper practice as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on

Local Authority Accounting in Great Britain (the Code of Practice).
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Opinion on the Council financial statements

Respective responsibilities of the Deputy Chief Executive and auditor

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements:

•

•

Opinion on other matters

Matters on which we report by exception

We report to you if:

We have audited the financial statements of Stockton-on-Tees Borough Council for the year ended 31

March 2016 under the Audit Commission Act 1998. The financial statements comprise the Movement in

Reserves Statement, the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the Balance Sheet, the

Cash Flow Statement, Collection Fund, and the related notes. The financial reporting framework that

has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local

Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16.

This report is made solely to the members of Stockton-on-Tees in accordance with Part II of the Audit

Commission Act 1998 and for no other purpose, as set out in paragraph 48 of the Statement of

Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by the Audit Commission in March 2010. To

the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the

Council and the Council’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we

have formed.

As explained more fully in the Statement of the Corporate Director of Resources Responsibilities, the

Director of Corporate Resources is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which

includes the financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC

Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom, and for being satisfied that they

give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial

statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements

sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material

misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the

accounting policies are appropriate to the Council’s circumstances and have been consistently applied

and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Deputy

Chief Executive; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the

financial and non-financial information in the explanatory foreword to identify material inconsistencies

with the audited financial statements. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or

inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

In our opinion, the information given in the explanatory foreword for the financial year for which the

financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 

STOCKTON-ON-TEES BOROUGH COUNCIL

give a true and fair view of the financial position of Stockton-on-Tees Borough Council as at 31

March 2015 and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended; and

have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local

Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2014/15.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 

STOCKTON-ON-TEES BOROUGH COUNCIL

•

•

•

• we exercise any other special powers of the auditor under the Audit Commission Act 1998.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

• securing financial resilience; and

• challenging how it secures economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

Conclusion on Council’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and

effectiveness in the use of resources

We have undertaken our audit in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the

guidance on the specified criteria, published by the Audit Commission, as to whether the Council has

proper arrangements for:

The Audit Commission has determined these two criteria as those necessary for us to consider under the

Code of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves whether the Council put in place proper arrangements for

securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2016.

We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk assessment, we

undertook such work as we considered necessary to form a view on whether, in all significant respects,

the Council had put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its

use of resources.

we designate under section 11 of the Audit Commission Act 1998 any recommendation as one

that requires the Council to consider it at a public meeting and to decide what action to take in

response; or

Respective responsibilities of the Council and the auditor

Scope of the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in

the use of resources

in our opinion the annual governance statement does not reflect compliance with ‘Delivering Good

Governance in Local Government: a Framework’ published by CIPFA/SOLACE in June 2007 and the

December 2012 addendum;

The Council is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and

effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and governance, and to review

regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.

We are required under Section 5 of the Audit Commission Act 1998 to satisfy ourselves that the Council

has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of

resources. The Code of Audit Practice issued by the Audit Commission requires us to report to you our

conclusion relating to proper arrangements, having regard to relevant criteria specified by the Audit

Commission.

We report if significant matters have come to our attention which prevent us from concluding that the

Council has put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its

use of resources. We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the

Council’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are

operating effectively.

we issue a report in the public interest under section 8 of the Audit Commission Act 1998;
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Conclusion

Certificate

Mark Kirkham CPFA ACA

For and on behalf of Mazars LLP

Rivergreen Centre

Aykley Heads

Durham

DH1 5TS

We certify that we have completed the audit in accordance with the requirements of the Audit

Commission Act 1998 and the Code of Audit Practice issued by the Audit Commission.

30 September 2016

On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance on the specified criteria published by the Audit

Commission, we are satisfied that, in all significant respects, Stockton-on-Tees Borough Council put in

place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for

the year ending 31 March 2016.
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Accruals

Amortised cost 

Capital Charge

Capital Expenditure

Consistency

Contingency

Depreciation

Effective interest method

Exceptional Items

Extraordinary Items

Fair Value

Finance Lease

The fair value of an asset is the price at which it could be exchanged in an arm's length transaction,

less, where applicable, any grants receivable towards the purchase or use of the asset.

The concept that income and expenditure are recognised as they are earned or incurred, not as money

is received or paid.

A charge to service revenue accounts to reflect the cost of non current assets used in the provision of

a service.

The concept that the accounting treatment of like items within an accounting period and from one

period to the next is the same.

The amount at which a financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial recognition, less

principal repayments and plus or minus any unamortised original premium or discount. International

Accounting Standard (IAS) 39 requires the amortised cost to be calculated using the effective interest

method. 

This is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability, and of

allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate

in a financial instrument is the rate that exactly discounts the cash flows associated with the

instrument to the net carrying amount at initial recognition.

Expenditure on the acquisition of a non current asset or expenditure designed to extend its useful life.

A condition which exists at the balance sheet date, where the outcome will be confirmed only on the

occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events.

The measure of the wearing out, consumption or other reduction in the useful economic life of a non

current asset, whether arising from use, effluxion of time or obsolescence through technological or

other changes.

Material items which derive from events or transactions that fall within the ordinary activities of the

Authority and which need to be disclosed separately by virtue of their size or incidence to give fair

presentation of the accounts.

Material items, possessing a high degree of abnormality, which derive from events or transactions that

fall outside the ordinary activities of the Authority and which are not expected to recur. They do not

include exceptional items, nor do they include prior period items, merely because they relate to a prior 

period. 
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Going Concern

Government Grants

Inventories

Comprise the value of items held in the following categories:

a) goods or other assets purchased for resale;

b) consumable stores;

c) raw materials and components purchased for incorporation into products for sale;

d) products and services in intermediate stages of completion;

e) long term contract balances; and

f) finished goods.

Investments

Long Term Contracts

Net Book Value

Net Current Replacement Cost

Net Realisable Value

Non Current Assets

The open market value of the asset in its existing use (or open market value in the case of a non

operational asset), less any expenses incurred in realising the asset.

A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a non current asset to the

lessee. Such a transfer of risks and rewards may be presumed to occur if at the inception of the lease

the present value of the minimum lease payments, including any initial payment, amounts to

substantially all of the fair value of the leased asset.

A long term investment is an investment that is being held for use on a continuing basis in the

activities of the Authority. Investments should be so classified only where an intention to hold the

investment for the long term can clearly be demonstrated or where there are restrictions as to the

investor's ability to dispose of the investment. Investments which do not meet the above criteria are

classified as current assets.

The amount at which non current assets are included in the balance sheet i.e. the historical cost or

current value, less the cumulative amounts provided for depreciation.

The cost of replacing or recreating the particular asset in its existing condition and in its existing use

i.e. the costs of its replacement or of the nearest equivalent asset, adjusted to reflect the current

condition of the existing asset.

A contract entered into for the design, manufacture or construction of a substantial asset or the

provision of a service (or a combination of assets or services which together constitute a single

project), where the time taken to substantially complete the contract is such that the contract activity

falls into different accounting periods. Some contracts with a shorter duration than one year should

be accounted for as long term contracts, if they are sufficiently material to the activity of the period.

Assistance by government and inter-government agencies and similar bodies, whether local, national

or international, in the form of cash or transfers of assets to an Authority in return for past or future

compliance with certain conditions relating to the activities of the Authority.

The concept that the Authority will remain in operational existence for the foreseeable future, in

particular that the revenue accounts and balance sheet assume no intention to curtail significantly the

scale of operations.
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Non Operational Assets

 

Operating Lease

A lease other than a finance lease.

Operational Assets

Post Balance Sheet Events

Those events, both favourable and unfavourable, which occur between the balance sheet date and the

date on which the Statement of Accounts is signed by the responsible financial officer.

Non current assets held by a Authority but not directly occupied, used or consumed in the delivery of

services. Examples of non-operational assets are investment properties and assets that are surplus to

requirements, pending sale or redevelopment.

Non current assets held and occupied, used or consumed by the Authority in the direct delivery of

those services for which it has either a statutory or discretionary responsibility.

Tangible assets that yield benefits to the Authority and the services it provides for a period of more

than one year.
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Prior Year Adjustments

Prudence

Usable Reserves

Unusable Reserves

Reserves that not available to spend; this category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised

gains and losses and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves

Statement line “Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations”.

Those material adjustments applicable to prior years, arising from changes in accounting policies or

from the correction of fundamental errors. They do not include normal recurring corrections or

adjustments of accounting estimates in prior years.

The concept that revenue is not anticipated, but is recognised only when realised, in the form either of

cash or of other assets, the ultimate cash realisation of which can be assessed with reasonable

certainty.

Amounts set aside to meet future costs, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves

and any statutory limitations on their use.
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AGENDA ITEM 11 

REPORT TO THE AUDIT AND 
 GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 
28th JUNE 2017 

 
REPORT OF THE STRATEGY DIRECTOR 

 
 
 
SUMMARY 

 
This report presents the Tees Valley Combined Authority Risk Management Strategy and 
the Tees Valley Combined Authority Corporate Risk Register as at the end of the first 
quarter of 2017/18. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
i. It is recommended that Audit and Governance Committee approve the Tees 

Valley Combined Authority Risk Management Strategy. 
ii. It is recommended that Audit and Governance Committee consider and comment 

on the contents of the Tees Valley Combined Authority Corporate Risk Register. 
 

DETAIL 
 

1. The Risk Management Strategy attached at Appendix 1 sets Tees Valley Combined 
Authority’s approach to risk management and integrates the requirements set out in the 
Single Pot assurance Framework. 

 
2. The Combined Authority will demonstrate a proactive approach to risk management 

which is based on the following key principles: 
 

2.1. Risk Management activity will be aligned to corporate and business plan aims, 
objectives and priorities. It will encompass all strategic and operational areas that 
may prevent the Combined Authority from fulfilling its strategic aims. 
 

2.2. It will anticipate and take preventative action to avoid risk rather than manage the 
consequences. 
 

2.3. It will seek to realise opportunities that arise from the monitoring of risk. 
 

2.4. A consistent approach for the identification, assessment and management of risk will 
be embedded throughout the organisation. 
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2.5. Risk control and mitigation will be effective, appropriate, proportionate and 

affordable. Risk controls will not be implemented where the cost and effort is 
disproportionate to the expected benefits. 
 

2.6. All employees are required to take responsibility for the effective management of risk 
throughout the organisation. 
 

2.7. The Managing Director and Directors are responsible for implementing this policy 
and for the escalation of risks to the Corporate Risk Register as required. 
 

3. The Corporate Risk Register attached at Appendix 2 covers the period 1st April 2017 to 
30th June 2017 and details risks that affect the operations of the Combined Authority as a 
whole. They have been reviewed and assessed using the assessment method included 
in the Risk Management Strategy. 
 

4. There are two risks that have been assessed as high risks in this period. 
 

5. No Business Plan risks have been escalated to the Corporate Risk Register during the 
last quarter. 

 
6. All risks are constantly being managed and reviewed. 

 
7. The Corporate Risk Register will be shared with Audit and Governance Committee on a 

quarterly basis. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

8. There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
i. It is recommended that Audit and Governance Committee approve the Tees 

Valley Combined Authority Risk Management Strategy. 
ii. It is recommended that Audit and Governance Committee note the contents of 

the Tees Valley Combined Authority Corporate Risk Register. 

 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
9. There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 

 
RISK ASSESSMENT 

 
10. This content of this report is categorised as low to medium risk. Existing management 

systems and daily routine activities are sufficient to control and reduce risk. 

 



Page 3 of 3 
 

CONSULTATION 
 

11. None required. 

 
 
Name of Contact Officer: Linda Edworthy 
Post Title: Strategy Director 
Telephone Number: 01642 527092 
Email Address: linda.edworthy@teesvalley-ca.gov.uk 
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Introduction 

Tees Valley Combined Authority (the Combined Authority) is committed to delivering its 

strategic objectives whilst having a clear focus on the awareness and management of 

threats that may impact its expected outcomes. 

As part of this, consideration is given to the potential risks and opportunities that face our 

activities on an ongoing basis. The responsibility of managing risk sits with all officers and is 

driven with a focus on actively being aware of all risks and not risk avoidance. 

Risk can be defined as an uncertain event, or set of events that, should it occur, will have an 

effect on the achievement of business activity. Threat is an uncertain event that could have a 

negative impact, and opportunity is an uncertain event that has the ability to provide a 

positive outcome. The process to identify, assess and manage business risk is risk 

management. 

This strategy focusses on monitoring risk associated with the key areas of activity that will 

ensure the strategic aims of the Combined Authority are met. 

 

Purpose and Key Principles 

This document sets out the Combined Authority’s approach to risk management and 

integrates the risk management requirements as detailed in the Single Pot Assurance 

Framework. 

It aims to explain the purpose of the risk management, and what is expected of employees 

to achieve the desired outcomes. 

The key principle of the Corporate Risk Register is to account for risks that face the 

Combined Authority as a whole. 

Risk management helps the organisation to: 

 Make informed decisions 

 Overcome threats impacting on delivery 

 Provide confidence in our ability to achieve objectives 

 Protect its assets and resources 

 Make informed investment decisions 
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The Combined Authority will demonstrate a proactive approach to risk management which is 

based on the following key principles: 

 Risk Management activity will be aligned to corporate and business plan aims, 

objectives and priorities. It will encompass all strategic and operational areas that 

may prevent the Combined Authority from fulfilling its strategic aims. 

 It will anticipate and take preventative action to avoid risk rather than manage the 

consequences. 

 It will seek to realise opportunities that arise from the monitoring of risk. 

 A consistent approach for the identification, assessment and management of risk will 

be embedded throughout the organisation. 

 Risk control and mitigation will be effective, appropriate, proportionate and 

affordable. Risk controls will not be implemented where the cost and effort is 

disproportionate to the expected benefits. 

 All employees are required to take responsibility for the effective management of risk 

throughout the organisation. 

 The Managing Director and Directors are responsible for implementing this policy 

and for the escalation of risks to the Corporate Risk Register as required. 

 

Risk Management Structure and Process 

The management of risk is captured within all areas of activity, as represented in the 

diagram on the next page. 

 

An overarching risk register covering strategic and key risks is incorporated into the 

Corporate Risk Register. 

 

The role of the Governance team provides oversight across all risk activities within the 

organisation and ensures there is a consistent approach to risk management reporting and 

escalation that fully meets the organisation’s needs. 
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Risk management follows a cyclical process and is a proactive activity to help identify and 

manage risks to ensure the Combined Authority’s strategic aims, and delivery of the 

Business Plan can be achieved through regular monitoring. 

The process follows 5 steps as demonstrated in the diagram above and is maintained 

through risks being clearly recorded within a risk register. An example of this can be found in 

Appendix 1. 

Confirm the business plan – The objectives and key outputs of the business plan should 

be clearly understood before a risk assessment is completed. The business plan is all key 

actions over the coming year but overarching strategic risks are captured in addition to this 

on the Corporate Risk Register. 

Identify the risk – Consideration should be given to any threats that could impact on the 

organisation’s ability to deliver the objectives. Risks can materialise from a number of 

sources with some examples being highlighted on page 6 of this document.  
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Evaluate the risk – Once risks have been identified, consideration needs to be given to the 

likelihood of the risk materialising and the impact it will have on delivery of objectives. Risks 

should be evaluated be determining the risk magnitude, which is a combination of likelihood 

and consequence. Decisions can then be made about whether the risk is acceptable or 

further action in required.  

Treat the risk – Once the level of risk has been identified, consideration should be given to 

determine and take appropriate steps to ensure the risk does not have a detrimental effect 

on delivery of the objective. This can include Tolerating the risk and no further action being 

required, Treating the risk to reduce the opportunity for the risk to materialise, Transferring 

responsibility for the risk to another party (e.g. Insurance), or taking steps to Terminate the 

risk from occurring. 

Monitor and review – Risks are regularly monitored to ensure mitigation measures are 

effective and the level of risk remains at an acceptable level, or further actions or a change 

in approach can be sought. Risks are monitored and addressed at a business level with 

further assurance and oversight of risk management of corporate risks being directed 

through the Audit and Governance Committee for risks with a score of 15 and above, and 

the Combined Authority Cabinet where appropriate. 

 

Risk Appetite 

Tees Valley Combined Authority will endeavour to keep all risks to as low a level as 

reasonably practical and will ensure risk activity is proportionate to the severity that each risk 

brings to the delivery of our objectives. We will demonstrate a focus on risk awareness but 

not be risk averse. 

As an organisation we strive to excel in the delivery of our strategic aims and in achieving 

this, it may be necessary to extend our risk appetite in order to achieve optimum delivery. 

Any extension on the risk appetite will be undertaken following a review of the individual 

business case and will not threaten the organisation’s statutory and legal obligations. 

Tees Valley Combined Authority recognises five key risk categories that have the 

opportunity to create a significant impact on business operations if not managed effectively. 

These include Finance, Reputation, Delivery, Legal & Governance and Health & Safety, 

details of the extent of risk for each is captured in the table below. 
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Consequence 
 

Minimal (1) Minor (2) Significant (3) Major (4) Critical (5) 

Financial 
Costs could increase by up to 
2.5% above budget. 

Costs could increase by 
between  2.5% and 5% above 
budget. 

Costs could increase between  
5% and 7.5% above budget. 

Costs could increase 
between  7.5% and 10% 
above budget. 

Costs could exceed budget  by 
greater than 10%. 

Reputation 

Minor poor media coverage or 
negative stakeholder relations 
contained locally over a short 
period of time including social 
media. 

Poor media coverage or 
negative stakeholder relations 
contained locally, extending to 
television coverage over a 
short period of time. 

Inability to maintain effective 
relations with stakeholders. 
Poor local media coverage 
over a prolonged period. 

Inability to maintain relations 
with stakeholders. 
Potential for national media 
coverage impacting on 
stakeholder confidence in 
Tees Valley Combined 
Authority. 

Inability to deliver political 
policies. 
Serious negative media 
coverage over a sustained 
period of time leading to 
political and/or public loss of 
confidence in Tees Valley 
Combined Authority. 

Delivery 
 

Threat could have a minimal 
impact on the quality of, or 
delivery delays of up to 3 
months. 

Threat could have a minor 
impact on the quality of, or 
delivery delays of between 3 
and 6 months. 

Threat could have a significant 
impact on the quality of, or 
delivery delays of between 6 
and 9 months. 

Threat could have a 
significant impact on the 
quality of, or delivery delays 
of between 9 and 12 months. 

Threat could have a critical 
impact on the quality of, non-
delivery, or delivery delays of 
greater than 12 months. 

Health & Safety 
 
 

Known H&S threats effectively 
managed through appropriate 
control measures. 

Potential for minor injury to 
occur that can be satisfactorily 
managed through Safety 
Management Systems. 

Potential for moderate injury or 
dangerous occurrence to be 
sustained, possible reporting 
to the Regulatory body. 

Potential for breach in H&S 
rules resulting in likely 
intervention by the 
Regulatory body. 

Severe injury or fatality likely to 
occur. 
Regulatory body intervention 
probable with threat of 
statutory enforcement or 
prosecution. 

Legal 

All constitutional and 
legislative requirements have 
been met and Tees Valley 
Combined Authority is action 
within its statutory powers. 

There is potential for legal 
action but measures to 
mitigate against any action can 
be demonstrated and no 
legislation has been breached. 

Discretionary opinion on the 
interpretation of legislation or 
contractual terms is applied to 
confirm Tees Valley Combined 
Authority’s ability to proceed 
with activities. 

Discretionary opinion is not 
followed and action taken 
contrary to advice of legal 
colleagues. 

Failure to comply with 
legislation and contractual 
obligations leading to the 
possibility of a litigation, 
arbitration or adjudication claim 
being brought. 
Tees Valley Combined 
Authority exceeds us 
legislative powers (Ultra Vires). 

Note: The above parameters are the agreed standard for the purpose of this strategy however due to the broad range of activities the Combined 

Authority undertakes a flexible approach will be taken commensurate to the potential impact of the individual activity being assessed. 
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Management of Risk 

Once assessed, risks will be recorded on a risk register to assist ongoing management, and 

will also be mapped into a scoring matrix for a picture of overall risk to be developed. This 

will enable to organisation to clearly determine its overall risk profile and the key risks 

requiring immediate intervention. Risk monitoring will be undertaken at regular intervals with 

reporting to Senior Management monthly to ensure risks are being effectively managed, with 

independent assurance quarterly at the Audit and Governance Committee. 

Business Plan risks that are deemed to affect the operations of the Combined Authority as a 

whole will be escalated to the Corporate Risk Register. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

High Risk 

Medium Risk 

Low Risk 

Risk is beyond tolerance levels and urgent action is 

required to demonstrate delivery can be achieved 

Risk is considered to have a significant impact on delivery of 

objectives and targeted intervention is required 

Level of risk indicates no major concerns to threaten delivery of 

objectives. Remedial action should be considered if appropriate 
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Appendix 1 – Template Risk Register 

Ref Risk Description Impact 
(1-5) 

Likelihood 
(1-5) 

Score 
(1-25) 

Change 
since 
last 

Current 
Controls 

Further 
Controls 
Required  

Deadline Comments Review 
Date 

          

     

  

    

          

     

  

    

          

 

          

          

 

          

 



Corporate Risk 2017/18

Ref Risk description

Impact

(1-5)

Probability 

(1-5)

Score

(1-25) Current Controls Further Controls Required Deadline Comments

Review 

Date

C01 Impact of Brexit on EU funding, 

including financial uncertainty 

and economic instability that 

affects national policy in relation 

to devolution and impact on 

ability to progress TVCA 

devolution strategy.

4 4 16

• On going engagement with Leaders & 

Mayor, chief officers and Government 

departments

• Continuation of focus on TVCA 

delivery of objectives and SEP

• Secured ESIF guarantee from 

Government

• Engagement with 

Government on future funding 

plans post Brexit

• Liaison with other Cas/LEPs

Ongoing Sep-17

C02 Failure to operate within TVCA 

constitution

4 2 8

• Updates and reports to TVCA Board

• Briefing and engagement with 

Constituent Authorities members taken 

place

• Public Consultation undertaken

• Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

meeting regularly

Sep-17

C03 Failure to secure appropriate 

arrangements for the creation of 

the South Tees Development 

Corporation

4 2 8

• Formal consultation undertaken

• Updates and reports to Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee and TVCA Board & 

shadow STDC Board

• Engagement with Government 

Ministers, MPs & Officials

• Working Group established

• TVCA Cabinet formally approved the 

establishment of the STDC at June 

meeting

Sep-17

C04 Failure to deliver commitments 

entered into in the devolution 

deal

3 3 9

• Implementation Plan agreed with 

Government

• Bi-monthly meeting with Government 

officials and on-going 

dialogue/reporting

• Management of Business Plan

• Leaders met with Secretary of State

Sep-17

C05 Failure to secure sufficient 

additional resources to fund 

proposed activity 

3 3 9

• Robust Medium Term Financial Plan, 

Treasury Management Strategy and 

Investment Plan agreed by TVCA Board

• Submission of high calibre bids for 

external funding

• Identifying opportunities for efficiency 

and greater impact

• Mayor to meet with 

Government Ministers

Sep-17

C06 Failure to manage funding in 

order to deliver maximum value 

for money 
3 3 9

• Creation and utilisation of Assurance 

Framework

• Investment Plan

Sep-17

Current assessment
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Ref Risk description

Impact

(1-5)

Probability 

(1-5)

Score

(1-25) Current Controls Further Controls Required Deadline Comments

Review 

Date

Current assessment

C07 Failure to deliver the existing 

pipeline of funding commitments

3 3 9

• Creation and utilisation of 

Development Fund to provide upfront 

investment in feasibility work

• Programme monitoring and review

• Assurance Process

• Strengthened capacity with addition of 

new Finance Director and Legal & 

Commercial Manager posts

Sep-17

C08 Failure to secure agreement on 

the future investment priorities

3 3 9

• TVCA Board has overall responsibility 

developing  & delivery of SEP, 

investment decisions and allocation 

resources.

• Proposals developed at early stage 

with Leaders & Mayor, LEP members, 

chief officers, partners and Government 

departments

• Agreement to Investment Plan

• Investment report on every Cabinnet 

agenda as standing item

• Quarterly Calls for projects - 

new pipeline to be agreed

• 6 month review of Investment 

Plan to be undertaken

Jul-17

Oct-17

Sep-17

C09 Failure to adequately 

communicate and explain the 

TVCA and Mayor functions and 

role may mean expectations are 

not managed

3 3 9

• Acting Marketing & Comms Manager 

appointed

• Communications Plan in place

• Engagement Plan to be 

developed

Sep-17

C10 Fail to ensure resources are 

spent on objectives TVCA is 

empowered to deliver
3 3 9

• Investment Plan

• Assurance framework

Sep-17

C11 Failure to provide sufficient 

capacity to delivery TVCA 

functions

3 3 9
Sep-17

C12 Fail to pass the first Gateway 

Review
5 3 15

• Bi-monthly meeting with Government 

officials and on-going dialogue

• Assurance framework

• Mayor to meet with 

Government Ministers

Sep-17

C13 Fail to maximise influence on 

regional/national level 3 3 9
• LEP Network representation

• Mayoral Role

• Mayor to meet with 

Government Ministers and 

other stakeholders

Sep-17

C14 Fail to build and maintain 

relationships with key partners 3 3 9
• Engagement Plan to be 

developed

Sep-17
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Executive summary 
Purpose of this report 
The Audit Strategy Memorandum sets out our audit plan in respect of the audit of Tees Valley Combined Authority (‘the Authority’) for the year ending 31 March 
2017, and forms the basis for discussion at the Audit and Governance Committee meeting on 28 June 2017. 

The plan sets out our proposed audit approach and is prepared to assist you in fulfilling your governance responsibilities. The responsibilities of those charged 
with governance are defined as overseeing the strategic direction of the entity and obligations related to the accountability of the entity, including overseeing 
the financial reporting process.  We have determined that the Audit and Governance Committee is those charged with governance for the purpose of our audit. 

 

Timing of our work 
Our audit will be delivered in four main phases as outlined in page 7 of this report.  The statutory deadline for the completion of 
our audit work is 30 September 2017. 

Financial Statements 
audit  

Significant risks 
We have identified the following areas on which we will carry out specific audit procedures to mitigate the risks of material 
misstatements in the Authority’s financial statements:   
• management override of controls; 
• revenue recognition of grant income; and 
• valuation of the defined benefit pension scheme and pensions estimates (IAS19). 

 
Materiality 
At the planning stage of the audit we have set materiality for the financial statements as a whole at £668,000. 
In reporting the results of our work we do not report identified misstatements below a clearly trivial level.  We have set this level at 
£20,000. 

Value for Money 
conclusion 

The work we carry out to form a conclusion on whether the Authority has proper arrangements in place for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources is summarised on page 9. We have not identified any significant risks in respect 
of our VFM work at this stage, but will continue to keep this under review throughout our audit. 

Independence 
We have considered any actual, potential or perceived threats to our independence on page 16.  We have not identified any such 
threats at this stage of the audit. 
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Audit scope and approach
The scope of our work 
The detailed scope of our work as your appointed auditor for 2016/17 is set 
out in the National Audit Office’s (NAO) Code of Audit Practice.  Our 
responsibilities and powers are derived from the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 (‘the 2014 Act’) and are summarised below.  
 
Opinion on the financial statements 
We are responsible for forming and expressing an opinion on the financial 
statements. Our audit is planned and performed so to provide reasonable 
assurance that the financial statements are free from material error and give 
a true and fair view of the financial performance and position of the Authority 
for the year.   
Our audit does not relieve management or the Audit and Governance 
Committee, as those charged with governance, of their responsibilities.  
 
Value for Money conclusion 
We are required to conclude whether the Authority has proper arrangements 
in place to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness it its use of 
resources.  We discuss our Value for Money work in greater detail later in 
this report. 
 
Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) 
We report to the NAO on the consistency of the Authority’s financial 
statements with its WGA submission. 
 
Electors’ rights 
The 2014 Act requires us to give an elector, or any representative of the 
elector, the opportunity to question us about the accounting records of the 
Authority and consider any objection made to the accounts by an elector.  
We also have a broad range of reporting responsibilities and powers that 
are unique to the audit of local authorities in the United Kingdom. 
 
 
 

Our response to the risk of fraud 
International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) require us to obtain reasonable 
assurance that the financial statements are free from material fraud and/or 
error.  There are a range of ways in which fraud may arise in the context of 
your financial statements and we formally consider the risk of fraud as part 
of our planning work and design appropriate procedures to mitigate risks 
identified.  We maintain an appropriate level of professional scepticism 
throughout the audit and are mindful that a material misstatement due to 
fraud is possible, however our audit should not be relied upon to identify all 
such misstatements. 
 
Management and the Audit and Governance Committee, as those charged 
with governance also have responsibilities in respect of fraud.  They are 
responsible for safeguarding assets and for the prevention and detection of 
fraud, error and non-compliance with laws and regulations.   
 
Our enquiries will focus on: 

• what role the Audit and Governance Committee has in relation to 
fraud and how it is kept informed of fraud related matters by 
management; 

• what anti-fraud measures you have in place and how your policies 
and procedures are monitored; and 

• whether you are aware of any actual, alleged or suspected fraud. 
 
We will formally write to write to the Audit and Governance Committee Chair, 
to reply on behalf of the Audit and Governance Committee in your role as 
those charged with governance, making the enquiries above, towards the 
end of the audit cycle. 
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Our approach to obtaining assurance over service or ganisations 
There are material entries in your financial statements where the Authority 
is dependent on an external organisation. We call these entities service 
organisations. In Appendix A, we outline our approach to understanding the 
services received from each organisation and the approach we intend to 
take to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence over items of account that 
derive from them. 
 
Our use of experts and other auditors 
Management and auditor experts 
There are material entries in your financial statements which are provided 
by management experts.  For some of these entries, we will use our own 
expert to provide us with the assurance we require in relation to the work of 
your expert.  

In addition to setting out information in respect of service organisations, 
Appendix A also summarises management’s experts and our planned audit 
approach to obtaining assurance over their work. 
 
Internal audit 
Where appropriate, we will seek to rely on work performed by internal audit 
where it provides us with the required assurance.  We will meet with internal 
audit to discuss their work programme and findings, and factor this in when 
determining the most efficient testing strategy. 

Where we intend to rely on the work of internal audit, we will evaluate their 
work and perform our own audit procedures to determine its adequacy for 
our audit.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audit efficiency and our use of IT 
Innovative and integrated use of IT drives the efficiency and effectiveness 
of our audit.  Your audit team uses the latest IT-based audit solutions and is 
supported by a team of IT auditors each of who have extensive knowledge 
of the public sector and providing assurance and advisory services across 
the public sector. 
 

We know that all organisations are different 
and face different risks.  Our audit platform 
is modern and flexible and allows us to 
tailor our audit approach to the specific 
risks relevant to the Authority, while 
ensuring compliance with underlying 
auditing standards. 
 
We focus on the risks to your business 
continuity and those that give rise to a risk 
of material misstatement in the financial 
statements.  Your audit team has access to 
a full suite of data analytics tools which 
allow them to determine the most effective 
and efficient testing strategy using IT-audit 
techniques where appropriate. 
 
 
 

Risk 
assessment 

Audit 
assurance 

Added value 
services 
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Significant risks and key judgements 
Identified significant risks 
As part of our planning procedures we have considered whether there are risks of material misstatement in the Authority’s financial statements that require 
special audit consideration. Although we report identified significant risks at the planning stage of the audit, our risk assessment is a continuous process and 
we regularly consider whether new significant risks have arisen and how we intend to mitigate these risks.  Where we identify any significant risks in addition to 
those set out below, we will report these to the Audit and Governance Committee as part of our Audit Completion Report. 
 

Significant risk  How we will mitigate the risk 

Management override of control 
In all entities, management at various levels within an organisation are in a 
unique position to perpetrate fraud because of their ability to manipulate 
accounting records and prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding 
controls that otherwise appear to be operating effectively. Due to the 
unpredictable way in which such overrides could occur, we consider there to 
be a risk of material misstatement due to fraud and thus a significant risk on all 
audits. 

We will address this risk by performing audit work in the following areas: 
• accounting estimates affecting amounts included in the financial 

statements; 
• consideration of identified significant transactions outside the normal 

course of business; and 
• journals recorded in the general ledger and other adjustments made in 

preparation of the financial statements. 

Recognition of grant income 

Grant income received by the Authority from Government and other grant 
paying bodies often includes specific conditions that must be met before the 
Authority should recognise the income in its accounts. Because of the nature 
of grant income with conditions, there is therefore a risk that the Authority 
recognises grant income in the incorrect reporting year. 
 

 
We will perform procedures to provide assurance that grant income is 
included in the correct year. 

Valuation of the defined benefit pension scheme and  pensions estimates 
(IAS19) 
The financial statements contain material pension entries in respect of the 
retirement benefits. The calculation of these pension figures, both assets and 
liabilities, can be subject to significant volatility and includes estimates based 
upon a complex interaction of actuarial assumptions. This results in an 
increased risk of material misstatement. 

We will discuss with key contacts any significant changes to the pension 
estimates prior to the preparation of the financial statements. In addition to 
our standard programme of work in this area, we will: 
• evaluate the management controls you have in place to assess the 

reasonableness of the figures provided by the Actuary; and 
• consider the reasonableness of the Actuary’s output, referring to an 

expert’s report on all actuaries nationally which is commissioned 
annually by the NAO. 
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Timetable and communication  
Our approach to communication 
International Standards on Auditing require us to communicate a number of 
matters with you at various points during the audit cycle.  Later in this section 
we outline exactly how we will communicate with the Audit and Governance 
Committee as those charged with governance.  As well as being an integral 
part of our responsibilities under auditing standards, we see two-way 
communication with the Audit and Governance Committee and the 
Authority’s staff as being critical to building a robust knowledge of your 
business, the risks and challenges you face and the plans you have in place 
to meet those challenges.   

Audit timetable  
The diagram below outlines the main phases of your audit, when each will 
be carried out and the outputs that you will receive at each stage.  This is 
underpinned by a ‘no surprises’ approach to communication that ensures 
management and the Audit and Governance Committee are kept aware of 
significant issues on a timely basis.  We intend to issue our Audit Strategy 
Memorandum in April 2017, our Audit Completion Report in August 2017 
and our Annual Audit Letter in September 2017. 

Fieldwork stage – June 2017 – July  2017 
We complete the bulk of our audit testing at the fieldwork 
stage, building on the work already done at interim.   

Key reporting and communication outputs 
- Regular update meetings with the finance team 

 

Completion stage – August 2017 
- Final review of the financial statements 

- Reviewing post balance sheet events 
- Partner review of the audit file 

- Agreeing the letter of representation 

Key reporting and communication outputs 
- Audit Completion Report 
- Auditor’s report 

Interim stage – February  / March  2017 
- Document and test systems and controls 

- Carry out IT audit testing using our IT specialists 
- Perform early substantive testing 

Key reporting and communication outputs 
- Audit progress and update report 

Plannin g stage – January 2017 – February 2017  
- Updating our understanding of the Authority 

- Opinion and VFM risk assessment 
- Developing our audit testing strategy 

- Agreeing our audit timetable 

Key reporting and communication outputs 
- Audit Strategy Memorandum 

1 

2 3 

4 
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Key communication points 
ISA 260 ‘Communication with those charged with governance’ and ISA 265 ‘Communicating deficiencies in internal control to those charged with governance 
and management’, require us to communicate a number of matters to you.  These matters are set out below. 
 

Matter to be communicated 
Audit Strategy 
Memorandum 

Audit Completion 
Report 

Our responsibilities in relation to the audit of the financial statements and our wider responsibilities �  

Planned scope and timing of the audit �  

Significant audit risks and areas of management judgement �  

Confirmation of our independence � � 

Responsibilities for preventing and detecting errors �  

Materiality � � 

Fees for audit and other services �  

Significant deficiencies in internal control  � 

Significant findings from the audit  � 

Significant matters discussed with management  � 

Conclusions on the significant audit risks and areas of management judgement  � 

Summary of unadjusted misstatements  � 

Management representation letter  � 

Our proposed audit report  � 

 
 
In addition to the matters outlined above which we are required to communicate under auditing standards, we also communicate regularly with the Audit and 
Governance Committee through our Audit Progress Reports, presented on a quarterly basis. We also report to the Authority on an annual basis to summarise 
our work and main conclusions through our Annual Audit Letter.
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Value for Money Conclusion 
Our approach to Value for Money work 
We are required to form a conclusion as to whether the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use 
of resources.  The NAO issues guidance to auditors that underpins the work we are required to carry out in order to form our conclusion, and sets out the 
criterion and sub-criteria that we are required to consider.  

The overall criterion is that, ‘in all significant respects, the Authority had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions and deployed 
resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.’  To assist auditors in reaching a conclusion on this overall criterion, 
the following sub-criteria are provided set out by the NAO: 

- informed decision making;  

- sustainable resource deployment; and  

- working with partners and other third parties. 

A summary of the work we undertake to reach our conclusion is provided below. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Risk assessment 

NAO Guidance 

Sector-wide issues 

Risk mitigation work Other procedures 

Consider the work of regulators 

Planned procedures to mitigate the 

risk of forming an incorrect conclusion 

on arrangements 

Consider the Annual Governance 

Statement 
Your operational and business risks 

Consistency review and reality check 
Knowledge from other audit work 
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Significant Value for Money risks 
The NAO’s guidance requires us to carry out work at the planning stage to identify whether or not a risk to the VFM conclusion exists.  Risk, in the context of 
our VFM work, is the risk that we come to an incorrect conclusion rather than the risk of the arrangements in place at the Authority being inadequate.  As 
outlined above, we draw on our deep understanding of the Authority’s arrangements and partners, the local and national economy and wider knowledge of the 
public sector. 

For 2016/17, at this stage we have not identified any significant risks for our VFM conclusion. We will keep this under review as our audit progresses. 

Initial audit risk assessment 
We undertook our initial risk assessment, based on the sub-criteria, using ratings with the following definitions. 

 

   No risks to our vfm conclusion identified to date and no further work planned. 

 

  Not considered to be an audit risk at this stage, however, risk indicators to be followed up as further information becomes available. 

 

Significant audit risk identified (as reported above). This denotes risk to us as auditors, it is not an assessment or rating of the 
Authority’s arrangements. 

 

Our risk assessment, by sub criteria, is shown in the tables that follow. We will also continue to monitor the Authority’s arrangements through: 

- ongoing meetings with officers; and 
- ongoing review of relevant meeting agenda papers and minutes where decisions relevant to our responsibilities are taken. 

  

Low 

Medium 

Significant 
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Sub-criteria 
Proper arrangements 

Audit risk 
rating at 
planning stage 

Arrangements at Tees Valley Combined Authority 

Informed decision making 

Acting in the public 
interest, through 
demonstrating and 
applying the principles 
and values of sound 
governance 

Low 

• Constitution in place which is available on the Authority's website, 
updated February 2017 to reflect move to an elected Mayor. 

• Constitution includes, financial regulations and Assurance 
Framework, Delegation to officers and Code of Conduct. 

• Devolution deal also available on the Authority’s website. 
• Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) plan in place for the period 2016 to 

2026 available on the Authority’s website (updated December 2016). 

• New entity so new management team in place in 2016 including 
Managing Director and three other directors. 

Understanding and using 
appropriate and reliable 
financial and performance 
information (including, 
where relevant, 
information from 
regulatory/monitoring 
bodies) to support 
informed decision making 
and performance 
management. 

Low 

• No data quality issues highlighted. 
• Audit and Governance Committee has met only once in the year in 

March 2017, but has undertaken its work programme for the year with 
a backward look, and agreed a forward work programme. 

• Initial budget and Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) was set at 
the start of the year and this went to the April 2016 Board. 

• Update on the financial position, proposed 2017/18 budget and 
updated MTFP presented to the Board in January 2017. 

• Medium term planning is undertaken and plans are in place; current 
MTFP covers 2017/18 to 2020/21, and is updated at least annually. 

Reliable and timely 
financial reporting that 
supports the delivery of 
strategic priorities. 

Low 

• Periodic reporting to Authority (and Overview & Scrutiny Committee). 
• Plans, strategies and MTFP are all on website. Includes section on 

future plans/developments and the role of the Combined Authority. 
• MTFP is updated as part of the current year’s budget setting process. 

Managing risks effectively 
and maintaining a sound 
system of internal control. 

Low 

• Management assurance framework and risk register in place for 
individual Local Growth Fund Programme cost which is maintained 
by the Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer. 

• Devolution deal implementation Plan incorporates high level risks. 
• Detailed presentation on risk management arrangements and key 

risks to March 2017 Audit and Governance Committee. 
• Programme of Internal Audit work at the Authority. 
• Arrangements to produce Annual Governance Statement in place. 
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Sub-criteria 
Proper arrangements 

Risk rating at 
planning stage 

Arrangements at Tees Valley Combined Authority 

Sustainable resource 
deployment 

Planning finances 
effectively to support the 
sustainable delivery of 
strategic priorities and 
maintain statutory 
functions. 

Low 

• First year of the Authority, however there are no significant gaps in 
funding in the MTFP. MTFP updated January 2017. 

Managing and utilising 
assets effectively to 
support the delivery of 
strategic priorities. 

Low 

• Authority does not have significant assets of its own, but does 
maintain a list of equipment, IT etc. 

• SEP identifies future large scale capital schemes/priorities. 

Planning, organising and 
developing the workforce 
effectively to deliver 
strategic priorities. 

Low 

• HR and payroll functions provided by Stockton BC and Authority 
relies on HR policies and procedures shared with the BC. A capacity 
review was undertaken in 2016. 

 

Sub-criteria 
Proper arrangements 

Risk rating at 
planning stage 

Arrangements at Tees Valley Combined Authority 

Working with partners and other 
third parties 

Working with third parties 
effectively to deliver 
strategic priorities. 

Low 

• Nature of the Authority is such that in order to deliver its strategic 
priorities it is required to work closely with the 5 Local Authority’s on 
Teesside and other public and private organisations. 

• Structure includes the Tees Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) 
(Transferred from Stockton BCl 1 April 2016). 

• SEP and website identify organisations that the Authority is working 
with in order to achieve its strategic priorities, i.e., Tess Valley 
Strategic Transport Plan – Connecting the Tees Valley. 

Commissioning services 
effectively to support the 
delivery of strategic 
priorities. 

Low 

• Overall aim is supported by plans for deliver as set out in its SEP. 

• Being delivered through provision of grants to other external bodies 
(i.e. Local Authorities, Education establishments, and local business) 
rather than through direct commissioning of its own services. 

Procuring supplies and 
services effectively to 
support the delivery of 
strategic priorities. 

Low 

• In part delegated to Stockton BC. 
• The Authority has written procedures for procuring products and 

services, which are within its Constitution (part 6). 
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Fees 
Fees for work as the Authority’s appointed auditor 
At this stage of the audit we are not planning any divergence from the scale fees set by Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) as communicated to you 
in our fee letter on 24 February 2017. 
 

Area of work 
2016/17 

proposed fee 

Code audit work £30,000 

 
Fees for non-PSAA work 
At this stage, we do not plan to carry out any non-PSAA work. Before agreeing to carry out any additional work, we would consider whether there were any 
actual, potential or perceived threats to our independence. Further information about our responsibilities in relation to independence is provided in Appendix 
B. 
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Our team  
 

Mark Kirkham – Partner  
Email: mark.kirkham@mazars.co.uk 
Phone: 0191 383 6300 
Bio: Mark has been an external audit engagement lead since 2002 and has sound experience of leading audits in local government, and 
specifically Combined Authorities. Mark will sign the auditor reports and liaise with the Chief Finance Officer. Along with Gareth, he will 
attend Audit and Governance Committee, and meet with management as appropriate. 

 
 
 
 
 

Gareth Roberts – Senior Manager 
Email: gareth.roberts@mazars.co.uk 
Phone: 0191 383 6323 
Bio: Gareth is an experienced Senior Manager and has worked in external audit of Local Government and the NHS for the past 15 years. 
He will liaise with the Chief Finance Officer and the finance team to ensure a smooth audit. 
 
 
 
 

 
David Hurworth – Assistant Manager 
Email: david.hurworth@mazars.co.uk 
Phone: 0191 383 6328 
Bio: David has a sound understanding of Local Government audit, having worked in the sector for over 20 years. David will be the key 
contact for the finance team, leading day-to-day audit work. 
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Appendix A – Service organisations and experts 
 

Service organisations 
As we outline in the main body of this report, the Authority makes use of service organisations.  ISA 402 defines a service organisation as one that provides 
services to another entity that form part of that entity’s information systems relevant to financial reporting.  The table below sets out the service organisations 
that we have identified as part of our planning work together with a description of how we intend to obtain assurance over the entries in your financial statements 
that are derived from them. 
 

Service organisation Services provided Planned audit approach 

Stockton-on-Tees Borough Council 
Financial services, including processing financial 
transactions and preparation of the financial 
statements. 

Review of and access to records and 
information at the service organisation. 

 

Experts 
The Authority also uses experts to provide entries in its financial statements.  The table below outlines the areas of the financial statements where we expect 
the Authority to use experts and an explanation of the approach we will take to obtaining assurance over those entries. 
 

Financial statement area Management’s expert Planned audit approach 

Defined benefit liability and associated IAS 19 
entries and disclosures. 

Actuary (Aon Hewitt). 
Review and consideration of work undertaken 
by the NAO’s consulting actuary (PWC). 

Financial instruments: fair value estimates. Arlingclose 
Review and consideration of the central 
assurance provided by the NAO. 
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Appendix B – Independence 
We are required by the Financial Reporting Council to confirm to you at least annually in writing, that we comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical 
Standards. In addition we communicate any matters or relationship which we believe may have a bearing on our independence or the objectivity of the audit 
team. 
 
Based on the information provided by you, and our own internal procedures to safeguard our independence as auditors, we confirm that in our professional 
judgement, there are no relationships between us, and any of our related or subsidiary entities, and you, and your related entities, creating any unacceptable 
threats to our independence within the regulatory or professional requirements governing us as your auditors. 
  
We have policies and procedures in place which are designed to ensure that we carry out our work with integrity, objectivity and independence. These policies 
include: 
• all partners and staff are required to complete an annual independence declaration; 
• all new partners and staff are required to complete an independence confirmation and also complete computer-based ethical training; 
• rotation policies covering audit engagement partners and other key members of the audit team who are required to rotate off a client after a set number of 

years; and 
• use by managers and partners of our client and engagement acceptance system which requires all non-audit services to be approved in advance by the 

audit engagement partner. 
 

We wish to confirm that in our professional judgement, as at the date of this document, we are independent and comply with UK regulatory and professional 
requirements. However, if at any time you have concerns or questions about our integrity, objectivity or independence please discuss these with either Mark 
Kirkham or Gareth Roberts.  
 
Prior to the provision of any non-audit services, Mark will undertake appropriate procedures to consider and fully assess the impact that providing the service 
may have on our auditor independence.  No threats to our independence have been identified. 
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Appendix C - Materiality 
 
Materiality is an expression of the relative significance or importance of a particular matter in the context of financial statements as a whole. Misstatements in 
financial statements are considered to be material if they, individually or in aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 
users taken on the basis of the financial statements.  
 
Judgements on materiality are made in light of surrounding circumstances and are affected by the size and nature of a misstatement, or a combination of both. 
Judgements about materiality are based on consideration of the common financial information needs of users as a group and not on specific individual users. 
 
The assessment of what is material is a matter of professional judgement and is affected by our perception of the financial information needs of the users of 
the financial statements. In making our assessment we assume that users: 
• have a reasonable knowledge of business, economic activities and accounts;  
• have a willingness to study the information in the financial statements with reasonable diligence; 
• understand that financial statements are prepared, presented and audited to levels of materiality; 
• recognise the uncertainties inherent in the measurement of amounts based on the use of estimates, judgement and the consideration of future events; and 
• will make reasonable economic decisions on the basis of the information in the financial statements. 
 
We consider materiality whilst planning and performing our audit.  
 
Whilst planning our audit, we make judgements about the size of misstatements which we consider to be material and which provides a basis for determining 
the nature, timing and extent of risk assessment procedures, identifying and assessing the risk of material misstatement and determining the nature, timing and 
extent of further audit procedures.  
 
The materiality determined at the planning stage does not necessarily establish an amount below which uncorrected misstatements, either individually or in 
aggregate, will be considered as immaterial.  
 
We revise materiality for the financial statements as our audit progresses should we become aware of information that would have caused us to determine a 
different amount had we been aware of that information at the planning stage. 
 
We discuss with management any significant misstatements or anomalies that we identify during the course of the audit and we report in our Audit Completion 
Report all unadjusted misstatements we have identified other than those which are clearly trivial, and obtain written representation that explains why these 
remain unadjusted. 
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Appendix D – Our added value 
 
Our primary responsibilities as the Authority’s external auditor are outlined in the main body of this report.  As your external auditor we are ideally placed to 
provide added value in delivering those responsibilities and the diagram below provides a summary of how we do this. 
 

 

Insight 

 
Analysis of emerging issues shared 
regularly with you through our Audit 
Progress Reports. 
 
Sharing knowledge from our membership 
of a range of professional networks 
including those hosted by the ICAEW and 
NAO. 
 
Regular updates from our public services 
advisory team on lessons learned from its 
work across the UK public sector. 
 
Access to our public sector governance 
forum allowing free and open discussion of 
governance issues. 

Expertise 

 
Specialist public sector financial reporting 
advisory service, providing expert analysis 
of emerging accounting issues. 
 
A dedicated IT audit and advisory team, 
with expertise and experience of providing 
services across the public sector. 
 
 
Provision of annual accounting workshops 
attended by your finance team.  

Support for continuous 
improvement 

 
Clear and open communication, allowing 
for a sensible basis of resolving emerging 
issues. 
 
Internal control recommendations and 
follow-up work in conjunction with internal 
audit. 
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Tees Valley Combined Authority Audit & Governance 

Forward Plan 2017/18 

Standing Items 

Minutes from the Previous Meeting 
Announcements from the Chair 
Forward Plan 
Date and Venue of the Next Meeting 
 

Date Venue Item / Responsible Officer 

 

28th June 2017 at 
2pm 

 

Cavendish House  
Teesdale Business Park 
Stockton On Tees     TS17 
6QY 

 

Selection of Chair/Vice Chair 

Terms of Reference 

Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion 

External Audit - Progress Report 

Annual Governance Statement  

Statement of Accounts 

Risk Management Strategy and Corporate Risk 
Register 

2016/17 Audit Strategy Memorandum 

 

26th September 
2017 at 10am  

 

 

 

 

Cavendish House  
Teesdale Business Park 
Stockton On Tees           
TS17 6QY 

 

Internal Audit Report 

External Audit - Progress Report 

Annual Governance Statement - Approval 

Statement of Accounts - Approval 

Corporate Risk Register 

External Audit - Audit Completion Report and 
Value for Money Opinion 
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1st December 2017 
at 10am  

 

 
 
Cavendish House 
Teesdale Business Park 
Stockton On Tees 
TS17 6QY 

 

Internal Audit Report 

Corporate Risk Register 

External Audit Annual Letter 

External Audit Progress Report 

Anti-fraud & Corruption Agreement 

 

28th February  
2018 at 10am  

 

 
 
Cavendish House  
Teesdale Business Park 
Stockton On Tees 
TS17 6QY 

 

Internal Audit Report 

Corporate Risk Register 

External Audit Progress Report 

External Audit Strategy Memorandum (Plan) 

Internal Audit Charter & Audit Plan 

 

 

 

Items to be scheduled: 

 

 

 

 
Contacts: 
Sharon Jones – Governance and Scrutiny Officer 
Tel – 01642 524580 
Email – Sharon.jones@teesvalley-ca.gov.uk 
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